
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213740 
 

 

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 1 March 2022 
 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 9 MARCH 2022 AT 7.00 PM 
 

FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 

You can watch this meeting via this weblink:  
 
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings  
 
If you are attending in person you will need to bring a portable device, such as a laptop 
or tablet to listen to and watch the meeting. You will also need to bring a 
headset/headphones. 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Max Thompson (Chair) 

Val Shaw (Vice-Chair) 
Ron Batstone 
Cheryl Briggs 
 

Jenny Hannaby 
Diana Lugova 
Ben Mabbett 
 

Mike Pighills 
Janet Shelley 
 

 
Substitutes Councillors 

Jerry Avery 
Paul Barrow, Dr 
Eric Batts 

Nathan Boyd 
Andy Cooke 
Amos Duveen 

Hayleigh Gascoigne 
Simon Howell 
Alison Jenner 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


  2 

 

 
1.  Chair's announcements   

 
To receive any announcements from the chair, and general housekeeping matters. 

 
2.  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
3.  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 17) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meetings held on Wednesday 10 November 2021 and Tuesday 7 December 2021. 
 
4.  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
5.  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.   
 
6.  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   

 
 

Planning applications 
 

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours. 
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 
 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page. 

 
     
7.  P21/V1498/FUL 

- Old Abbey 
Extension and change of use to P21/V1498/FUL 18 - 36 

 



  3 

 

House, Abbey 
Close, 
Abingdon   

create a hotel (as amended by plans 
received 9 July 2021, information and 
plan received 9 September 2021, and 
plans received 15 February 2022). 

     
8.  P21/V3388/LB - 

Old Abbey 
House, Abbey 
Close, 
Abingdon   

Part demolition of rear of building, 
replacement extension and other 
internal alterations to create a hotel 
(as amended by plans received 15 
February 2022). 

P21/V3388/LB 37 - 49 

 

     
9.  P21/V3148/HH - 

2 Bertie Road, 
Cumnor   

Demolition of attached garage and 
erection of two storey extension on 
the same footprint. Erection of 
attached double garage at front of 
dwelling. Note, this forms an 
amendment to application 
P18/V0136/HH which is currently 
under construction, and a subsequent 
application P21/V1867/HH which was 
withdrawn. 

P21/V3148/HH 50 - 61 

 

     
10.  P21/V3298/FUL 

- 65 St Johns 
Road, Abingdon   

Change of use of retail (E use class) 
into restaurant (E use class) and 
takeaway (Sui Generis) including 
installation of extraction flue system to 
side. 

P21/V3298/FUL 62 - 70 

 

 
 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday, 10 November 2021 at 6.00 pm 
in First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, 
Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Ron Batstone, 
Jenny Hannaby, Ben Mabbett, Mike Pighills and Janet Shelley 
 
Officers: Paul Bateman and Emily Hamerton 
Guest: Councillor Eric de la Harpe 
 

Remote attendance: 
Officers:  Penny Silverwood and Susie Royse  
 
 

9 Chair's announcements  
 
The chair ran through housekeeping arrangements appropriate to an in-person meeting 
which was being simultaneously broadcast. 
 

10 Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cheryl Briggs and Diana Lugova. 
 

11 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 7 July 2021 were agreed to be a correct 
record of the meeting. It was agreed that the chair sign them as such. 
 

12 Declarations of interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

13 Urgent business  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

14 Public participation  
 
The committee had received statements which had been made by the public in respect of 
the application. These had been circulated to the committee some days prior to the meeting. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

 

15 P21/V0024/FUL - Land to the West of Wootton Road,  Abingdon-on-
Thames  
 

Councillor Ben Mabbett arrived at the meeting partway through the discussion 
on this application and therefore did not participate in the vote upon it. 
 
The committee considered application P21/V0024/FUL for the erection of a 
Class E discount food store with associated access, parking and servicing 
areas, landscaping, and associated works. Amended plans including revised 
landscaping, parking and retail information received 9 June 2021 and 
amended highways details received 5 August 2021 and 10 September 2021 
and 29 September 2021. Additional retail information received 15 October 
2021 on Land to the West of Wootton Road, Abingdon-on-Thames. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning 
history were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda 
pack for the meeting. 
 
The planning officer reported that the proposal has been amended following 
technical officer comments relating to highways, landscaping, trees, and 
design.  
 
Mr. Ian Marshall, Principal Transport Engineer, Oxfordshire County Council 
(OCC), was present at the meeting virtually, who would answer any questions 
from the committee regarding highways issues.  
 
The planning officer clarified that the council could not control the end user of 
the proposed development through the planning system, and therefore the 
application had to be considered on the basis on the use class applied for, with 
no weight to be attached to any intended end users. The proposal had 
received 13 letters of objection, 7 concerns, 290 letters of support, and 35 
individuals had registered support on the Aldi Ltd. website. The planning officer 
also reported that since the publication of the agenda, two objections had been 
received. A further objection had been made on behalf of Tesco Stores Ltd., 
alleging that the retail sequential test had not been made correctly. Officers 
had been supported by an independent retail consultant and council officers 
were satisfied that there were not any available sites within a reasonable 
timeframe, or suitable, in and around Abingdon.  Planning officers advised that 
Fairacres Retail Park was not considered to be a sequentially superior site, as 
it would not offer linked trips to the application site over the application site. 
The Planning officer provided clarity regarding the wording of NPPF paragraph 
87 and guidance from the Planning Practice Guidance. Officers advised the 
committee that the proposal would not adversely affect the viability or vitality of 
Abingdon town centre. 
 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

The planning officer reported that an objection from the Oxfordshire Cycle 
Network, had been received, which considered that the proposed development 
did not encourage sustainable living and was not in line with LTN1/20 and 
OCC cycle standards. The Network was also concerned that an existing BT 
kiosk obstructed the cycle route. The officer gave details of the priority 
arrangement for cyclists and advised that officers considered it to be 
appropriately located. The planning officer reported that there were plans for 
the kiosk to be set flush to the ground and which, therefore, would not impede 
cyclists.  
 
With reference to paragraph 5.5 of the report, the planning officer reported that 
in accordance with CP4 of Local Plan Part 1 (LPP1) and the Site Development 
Template, development on this site should predominantly provide residential 
uses and that therefore this proposal was contrary to this policy. An application 
for residential development on the wider part of the allocated site, 
encompassing the entire field to the west of Wootton Road, was submitted in 
2018. A separate location to the east of this site had received planning 
permission for residential development, which at present was being built out. 
Also, an application for residential development on the wider part of the 
allocated site, encompassing the entire field to the west of Wootton Road, was 
submitted in 2018. Whilst the application was later withdrawn, during the 
assessment of the application, it was demonstrated that the immediate north-
east corner of the site could not accommodate residential development due to 
excessively high noise levels from road traffic. As a result, during pre-
application discussions for this retail proposal, officers advised that, on 
balance, a development of this section of the site for alternative uses, such as 
retail, could be supported, providing that it would not prevent, or be detrimental 
to, the deliverability of residential development on the remainder of the 
allocation. In response to a later question from the committee, regarding a 
nominal number of ‘lost’ dwellings from the food store site, the planning officer 
responded that such an assessment was not relevant, due to the unsuitability 
for housing development on this part of the site. 
 
The planning officer reported that the proposed main access was located in 
the south eastern corner of the application site, formed with a right turn lane 
onto Wootton Road. Pedestrian access was also provided into the site in this 
location, as well as an additional pedestrian access into the site further north 
along Wootton Road. Following receipt of amended plans, the access had 
been designed to give priority to users of the existing cycle path along Wootton 
Road, with ‘give way’ markings to be installed for vehicles at the access. The 
priority to cyclists would help to encourage the use of sustainable modes of 
transport, as supported by policy CP35 of the LPP1. The existing shared 
cycle/footway along Wootton Road measured 2.7m. in width, which was 
marginally below the 3.0m. width normally required by Oxfordshire Cycle 
Design Standards. Providing the additional 0.3m. width on the cycle path 
would result in the loss of the existing hedgerow. A Thames Water easement 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

prevented any planting in the area running behind the existing hedgerow, and 
thus it would not be possible to replace the hedgerow further back within the 
site. Council officers considered that the retention of the existing hedgerow 
was very important to the visual amenity of the proposed development and the 
character of Wootton Road in providing a transition from the built form of 
Abingdon to the more rural, green belt land to the north. Mr. Ian Marshall 
reported that 2.7m was acceptable to the OCC and that the width would be 
maintained through the routine inspection and maintenance regime. The 
committee noted that a toucan crossing was proposed to be installed across 
Wootton Road, which would be secured by a S106 agreement. In response to 
a question from the committee regarding the definition of such a crossing, the 
planning officer reported that the design allowed for pedestrians and cyclists to 
cross at the same time. 
 
Councillor Jim Halliday, a representative of Abingdon Town Council, spoke to 
the application. 
 
Mr. Alan Williams, the agent, spoke in support of the application. In response 
to a question from the committee regarding energy conservation measures to 
be installed in the proposed foodstore building, Mr. Williams responded that 
heat from the chiller units would be recycled. In response to a suggestion that 
4 electric vehicle (EV) units seemed to be a small number, Mr. Williams replied 
that infrastructure would be installed to allow for 16 to 20 units to come 
onstream if usage demanded. 
 
Councillor Eric de la Harpe, a local ward councillor, spoke in support of the 
application.  
 
In response to a question from the committee regarding possible noise 
disturbance to residents resulting from deliveries, the planning officer replied 
that proposed condition 15 required that a delivery and servicing management 
plan would be submitted by the developer. 
 
In response to a question from the committee regarding a ‘kink’ in the cycle 
path and whether this impaired visibility, Mr. Marshall replied that this part of 
the cycle path had been assessed as having good forward visibility and that 
there was no justification for a realignment. Visibility would be assured through 
the maintenance of the hedgerow. In a follow up question, Mr. Marshall was 
asked if the proposed right turn out of the store could create traffic tail backs; 
he replied that the turning was of standard design and in compliance with 
guidance. OCC had specifically studied the issues of traffic queuing at this 
location and had concluded that the situation would be acceptable.  
 
The committee asked whether there was provision for improved cycleways at 
north Abingdon, Wootton, St. Helen Without and Sunningwell. The planning 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

officer replied that the OCC had not requested such infrastructure from this 
application but that CIL funding could be used for such a project. 
 
The committee noted the proposed provision for cycle parking and noted that 
16 spaces were allocated for customers and four for staff. The planning officer 
reported that proposed pre-commencement condition 9 required that cycle 
parking details be submitted to the council for approval. 
 
The committee had concerns regarding lighting, noting paragraph 5.63 of the 
report that, ‘whilst some lighting information had been provided in support of 
the application, there were conflicts between the proposed lighting and the 
proposed tree planting, and that the lighting plan had not been updated to 
reflect the most recent amendments to the layout and landscaping’. The 
planning officer advised that proposed condition16 required external lighting 
details to be submitted prior to the occupation of the site, which should deal 
with the latest position on site, particularly the reduction of any nuisance to 
residents. 
 
The committee requested the OCC representative for an update on the 
proposals for the south facing slip roads on the A34 near Abingdon. Mr. 
Marshall reported that a public consultation was ongoing, with scoping work 
being undertaken at the present time. There had been a considerable amount 
of dialogue regarding the effect of the proposals upon surrounding small 
villages. The OCC website gave full details to the public, and Vale of White 
Horse councillors would be kept advised.   
 
The committee concluded that the proposed development was acceptable and 
should be permitted, with the proviso that the appropriate condition 9 should 
stipulate a minimum of 16 cycle parking spaces for customers. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was carried on 
being put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: that authority to grant planning permission for application 
P21/VV0024/FUL is delegated to the Head of Planning Services, subject to the 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Completion of a S106 agreement with Oxfordshire County Council to 
secure a contribution towards travel plan monitoring and public transport 
services and infrastructure and the provision of a TOUCAN crossing along 
Wootton Road; 
 
2. Conditions as summarised below: 
 
1. Time limit for commencement 
2. Approved plans 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
3. Slab levels to be submitted 
4. Biodiversity offsetting scheme 
5. Surface water drainage scheme to be submitted 
6. Foul drainage scheme to be submitted 
7. Landscaping scheme to be submitted 
8. Landscape maintenance and long-term management plan to 
         be submitted 
9. Cycle parking details to be submitted 
10. Construction Traffic Management Plan to be submitted 
11. Community Employment Plan to be submitted 
 
Details to be submitted prior to occupation 
12. Public Art strategy to be submitted 
13. SUDS compliance report to be submitted 
14. Travel plan to be submitted 
15. Delivery and Servicing Management Plan to be submitted 
16. External lighting details to be submitted 
 
Compliance 
17. Implementation of ecological mitigation and enhancement  
           measures 
18. Implementation of Arboricultural assessment and tree 
           protection plan 
19. Provision of rapid electric vehicle charging points 
20. Noise levels 
21. Implementation and management of landscaping scheme 
22. Visibility splays to be provided 
23. TOUCAN crossing to be provided 
24. Building to be used for Class E retail foodstore only 
25. Total Class E floorspace shall not exceed 1842sq.m and net  
         sales area shall not exceed 1315sq. m 
26. Class E floorspace shall be used for a maximum of 1052sq.m 

convenience goods and a maximum of 263sq. m comparison goods 
27. No mezzanine or first floor level to be constructed 
28. No subdivision to two or more units 
 
Informatives 
1. S106 agreement attached 
2. Amount of biodiversity units required to offset 
3. Land Drainage Consent 
4. Consent required from OCC for works in the public highway 
5. Groundwater Risk management permit may be required 
 

 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

 
The meeting closed at 19:15 

 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Tuesday, 7 December 2021 at 6.00 pm in 
First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, 
Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Ron Batstone, Cheryl Briggs, 
Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Ben Mabbett, Mike Pighills and Janet Shelley 
Officers: Michael Flowers and Emily Hamerton 
Other: Councillor Andrew Crawford  
 

Remote attendance: 
Councillors: Helen Pighills 
Officers: Paul Bateman, Martin Deans, Bertie Smith, Stuart Walker, and Hanna 
Zembrzycka-Kisiel 
 

16 Chair's announcements  
 
The chair informed the committee that from January 2022 onwards, meetings of the Vale of 
White Horse District Council Planning Committee would convene at a new start time of 7pm. 
 

17 Apologies for absence  
 
None. 
 

18 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2021 as a 
correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such. 
 

19 Declarations of interest  
 
Councillor Cheryl Briggs stood down from applications P20/V3043/FUL and P20/V3044/LB 
as she was a local ward member. 

 
Councillor Mike Pighills stood down from applications P20/V3043/FUL and P20/V3044/LB 
due to predetermination. 
 
Councillor Val Shaw stood down from application P21/V0477/FUL as she was a local ward 
member. 
 
 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

20 Urgent business  
 
None. 
 

21 Public participation  
 
The committee noted the list of members of the public registered to speak at the meeting. 
The committee had received, prior to the meeting, copies of the statements which had been 
made. 
 

22 P20/V3043/FUL - 25-27 Stert Street, Abingdon  
 
The committee considered application P20/V3043/FUL for refurbishment, alterations and 
extensions to separate commercial unit from existing flat, and provide 2 x 1 bed flats. (As 
amended by additional plans and information received on 28.4.21, 29.7.21 and 10.11.21). 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
The planning officer updated the committee that the Friends of Abingdon had removed their 
objection to the application, but had subsequently requested a condition for the recording of 
any historic fabric to be removed, although officers did not see this condition as necessary. 
The committee were also presented with an update that the neighbour at 29 Stert Street 
had recently written in to reiterate previous objections.  
 
In addition, the officer recommended replacing condition thirteen with a compliance 
condition for all unauthorised works to be agreed and rectified within six months of any 
permission being granted. The officer subsequently provided the context of the application, 
detailing the layout of the existing site, the proposal that was being considered at the 
meeting, and the impact planning permission would have on the listed building. The 
planning officer concluded by confirming there had been no objection from the 
environmental officer nor county engineer, and that the application was recommended for 
both planning permission and listed building consent. 
 
Councillor Helen Pighills, local ward member, spoke in objection to the application. 
 
The officer was asked whether any construction work had already begun on the site before 
planning permission had been considered by the committee. The officer confirmed that they 
were aware work had commenced on-site, but the work was not connected to the 
application, and instead was thought to be restorative work to the rear of the property. 
 
The committee asked for clarification on where the bin storage would be for the site. The 
response from the officer was that they would be located towards the north of the site. 
Additionally, upon a further question on whether the window would be blocked by the iron 
stairway, the officer explained that it was deemed that the provision of an escape route was 
desirable and would mitigate any concerns on a blocked window view. 
 
The committee sought clarification on whether the iron walkway would be the main access 
point for the first floor of the development or whether this was an additional access point for 
emergency usage. The officer confirmed that the new development would include a new 
access within the entrance of the property and so this additional access point was primarily 
designed for usage during an emergency. 
 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

A question was asked by the committee seeking clarification on the current condition the 
buildings were in. The officer responded with confirmation that the property was in a poor 
state and was not currently occupied. In addition, the shop unit was currently vacant. 
The committee asked a series of questions relating to concerns on risks to the preservation 
of the site and how conditions would be enforced. The officer explained that a number of 
conditions had been implemented which controlled the materials that could be used on 
construction. Additionally, the officer added that as the property was a listed building, any 
non-permitted alterations was a criminal offence and could be subject to prosecution, which 
from their experience was an adequate deterrence. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P20/V3043/FUL subject to the 
following conditions; 
 
Standard  

1. Commencement within three years  

2. Approved plans list  

Pre-commencement 
3. Check for nesting birds on-site  
4. Submission of Archaeological Watching Brief  
5. Archaeologist to be present on-site and findings reported within two years  
6. Construction Traffic Management Plan to be submitted  
7. Access details including visibility splays to be submitted 
Pre-damp course level  

8. Submission of material details (samples by photographic record) 

Pre-occupation 
9. Swift brick/box to be provided on site  

10. Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure to be provided 

11. Car parking to be provided in accordance with plan 

12. Bicycle parking and bin storage to be provided in accordance with plan and bin 

storage 

Compliance 
13. All unauthorised works to be agreed and rectified within six months of any permission 

being granted. 
 

23 P20/V3044/LB - 25-27 Stert Street, Abingdon  
 
The committee considered application P20/V3044/LB for the refurbishment, alterations and 
extensions to separate commercial unit from existing flat, and provide 2 x 1 bed flats. (As 
amended by additional information received on 28.4.21 and 29.7.21) 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant listed building consent for application P20/V3044/LB  subject to the 
following conditions; 
 
 

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

Standard  
1. Commencement within three years  

2. Approved plans list  

Pre-commencement 
3. Submission of details for the rear and stair walls to be reinstated 

4. Submission of details for the proposed lobby walls 

Pre-damp course level 
5. Submission of material details (samples by photographic record) 

6. Rectification of unauthorised construction 

Advisory 
7. Photographic details of the site over the course of its development 

 

24 P21/V0477/FUL - Wootton Business Park, Wootton, Abingdon  
 
The committee considered application P21/V0477/FUL for the construction of an office 
building and associated refuse store, cycle store, plant enclosure and car parking and 58 
residential units with car parking and associated landscaping across the site (As per 
amended plans received 20 August 2021 and 20 October 2021). 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
The planning officer informed the committee that of the fifty-eight residential units to be built, 
twenty-one of these would be affordable housing. It was also added that while fifty-eight 
residential units was proposed in the application, the permissions from 2014 and 2016 were 
for sixty-four units and as such this application was a reduction of six housing units.  The 
committee were told that amended designs for the site had been submitted by the applicant 
in order to remedy the objections raised by Landscaping, Urban Design, Housing and 
Oxfordshire County Council and that the objections relating to these issues were now 
withdrawn. Additionally, the officer added that since publication of the agenda, the council 
had received a revised comment regarding the financial contributions requested from the 
development, which sought to receive contributions for the nearby nature reserve, which 
would be included in a legal agreement. 
 
Ian Bristow, representative of Wootton Parish Council, spoke in objection to the application. 
In response to a question on whether he considered the new application more contentious 
than the existing permission held, Mr Bristow explained that the new application was subject 
to the newly implemented Neighbourhood Plan and the new application had not made any 
allowance of this and as a result the new proposal needed significant improvements to it to 
meet the standards of the Neighbourhood Plan now implemented. 
 
Mark Krassowski, the agent, spoke in support of the application. Mr Krassowski responded 
to a number of questions from the committee surrounding the previous application of the 
site, and the provision of parking spaces for the proposed new application. Mr Krassowski 
explained that development of the site from the previous planning permission had 
commenced with the required fees paid and planning permission had lawfully commenced, 
however for various reasons had been unable to proceed further. Additionally, the agent 
explained that modelling had been completed for the provision of parking places and that 
the parish council’s contention was due to the Deerhurst development. Mr Krassowski also 
added that the on-plot parking met the parking standards required for the proposed 
development. 
 

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

Councillor Val Shaw, local ward member, spoke in objection to the application. Councillor 
Shaw in response to questions from the committee explained that the current public 
transport links were not adequate for the proposed development, and that there was only 
one bus per hour in the area. Additionally, the parish would like a roundabout added to the 
entrance of the proposed developments entrance in order to facilitate a new bus route into 
the estate. 
 
The committee asked whether a wheel-wash could be added to the site due to concerns on 
the amount of mud that could be on the roads. Additionally, the committee asked why there 
was no mention of roundabouts for the site. The planning officer responded that a wheel-
wash was already in the conditions but that a roundabout had been deemed unnecessary 
and there had been no requirement either from the previous application originally approved 
which needed to be considered.  
 
The committee asked in relation to children attending the nearby school, how they would be 
able to cross safely without a designated pedestrian crossing area and whether any formal 
risk assessment had been carried out for a crossing point or roundabout. The officer 
responded that OCC had provided guidance on what was acceptable and had not 
requested any additional pedestrian crossing zones. Additionally, as the site was by an 
existing road and public transport links, OCC did not feel additional crossing or traffic control 
points necessary. In addition, the committee asked a question relating to the existing 
children’s play area and the funding for the site’s maintenance. The planning officer 
responded that the sums raised from the previous application were not required to go to this 
play area, however the committee were advised that if the other development who had built 
the site did not maintain it then a condition allowed the district council to take possession of 
it. Additionally, in response to a question on the amenity space in the adjacent land, the 
officer explained that the neighbouring site was a nature reserve and green-belt area, and 
so expected maintenance of this land would have an insignificant cost. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on being 
put to the vote. 
 
Councillor Cheryl Briggs, owing to losing connection during the item, took no part in the 
vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P21/V0477/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions; 
 
Standard 

1. Commencement of development – three years  

2. Development in accordance with approved plans  

Pre-commencement 
3. Landscape Management Plan  

4. Landscaping (S38 and S278 works) 

5. Details of amount of rooting volume provided for each tree  

6. Detailed sustainable drainage scheme  

7. Foul water drainage scheme  

8. Phased contaminated land risk assessment 

9. Slab levels 

10. Tree Protection Plan 

11. Construction Traffic Management Plan 

12. Community Employment Plan 

 

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

Pre-occupation 
13. SUDS compliance report 

14. Wootton Meadow Management Plan 

15. Details of noise control measures 

16. Remediation strategy and validation report 

Compliance  
17. Foundation depths 

Informatives 
18. Contaminated Land Informative 

19. Highway Informatives 

20. Thames Water 

 

25 P21/V2040/RM - Care Home site, Centre West Phase,  Kingsgrove  
 
The committee considered application P21/V2040/RM for reserved Matters application for 
the construction of a 72 bed care home (Use Class C2), with associated access, parking, 
landscaping, plant, and site infrastructure, pursuant to outline planning permission 
P19/V1269/FUL. Details submitted in accordance with conditions 8, 17, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 
27, 29, 30, 31, 33, 34, 35, 37, 38, 43, 48 and 54. As amended by plans and information 
received 29 September 2021 and 28 October 2021. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  
 
The planning officer explained that the proposed development consisted of an allocated site 
in the local plan and had been brought to the committee as a result of an objection from 
Wantage Town Council. It was confirmed that there had been no technical issues raised 
and that subject to conditions, the application was recommended for approval. 
 
Erik Johnson, representative of Wantage Town Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
Amy Paterson, the agent, spoke in support of the application. In response to questions from 
the committee surrounding the parking facilities for the proposed care home, Ms Paterson 
explained that the provision had been based on a multi-site study of existing Care UK 
facilities, with the evidence submitted to the Highways Authority. Ms Paterson also added 
that they had based the parking provision on the shift pattern of staff who would be on site 
at any one time, and that parking spaces had been allocated alongside cycle storage and 
the consideration that the site was near public transport linkage. 
 
Andrew Crawford, local ward member, spoke in objection to the application. 
 
In response to question raised by the committee on pedestrian movement, the planning 
officer explained that the road network had been analysed through the conduct of a road 
safety audit, and it was noted that the existing road had a low speed already in place. The 
officer clarified that there was a pedestrian link from the east of the site which led to the 
public square, together with footpaths along the north side of the access road outside of the 
development and officers felt that a continuous footpath on the south side of the road was 
not required.  
 
In response to a question on the provision of disabled parking spaces as a proportion of the 
twenty-six spaces provided by the proposed care home, the planning officer explained that 
the number of disabled spaces were required based on a proportion of the total spaces 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

provided. Additionally, the officer explained to the committee in response to a further 
question on a possible continuous footpath, that it had been looked at during an earlier 
iteration of the application but the current proposal which did not feature one was deemed 
acceptable. 
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the item was declared carried on being put to the 
vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to defer application P21/V2040/RM to review: 

1. Concerns on the layout of car-parking spaces to serve the site 

2. Concerns for public safety arising from the lack of a continuous pedestrian pavement 

on the external road outside the proposed development 

 
 
The meeting closed at 8.22 pm 

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V1498/FUL 

 SITE Old Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JD 

 PARISH ABINGDON 
 PROPOSAL Extension and change of use to create a 

hotel. (As amended by plans received 9 
July 2021, information and plan received 
9 September 2021, and plans received 
15 February 2022) 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Cheryl Briggs 
Helen Pighills 

 APPLICANT Mr Daniel Ede 
 OFFICER Martin Deans 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 Planning Permission subject to the following conditions: 

 
Standard 

 1. Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission 
2. Approved plans 
 
Compliance 
3. HY7 - Car Parking (Full) 
4. LS4 - Tree Protection (Full) 
5. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the Bat Survey  
    Report 
 
Prior to First Use 
6. EV charging point installed 
7.  External lighting only in accordance with approved details 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application has been called to committee by ward councillor, Helen 

Pighills. The site of this application is Old Abbey House, a grade II listed 
building that lies in Abbey Close, Abingdon. The building lies within the 
Abingdon Town Centre Conservation Area, at the west end of Abbey Gardens. 
The application site contains no part of Abbey Gardens but does include the 
car park in front of the building, together with the existing cycle/bin stores, the 
stone walls and the lawn to the north-west of the building. 
 

1.2 The site lies within the historic core of Abingdon, within the precinct of the 
former Abbey of Abingdon. There are a number of other listed buildings in the 
vicinity, the most notable of which are The Abbey Gate and St Nicholas 
Church, both grade I listed, and which lie to the west of the site. To the south 
are nos 7 and 9 Abbey Close, which are grade II listed. The Abbey Gate and 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V1498/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

the remains of the Abbey of Abingdon, within Abbey Gardens, are both 
Scheduled Monuments. To the north of the site is Abbey House, the Vale of 
White Horse District Council offices. 
 

1.3 The application site contains six trees of varied species, and there are a 
further five trees close to the application site. All of the trees are either 
Category A or B, with between 20 and 40-plus years of expected life 
remaining. 
 

1.4 Old Abbey House was most recently used as offices and meeting rooms for 
Abingdon Town Council. It is currently vacant. This application seeks planning 
permission for change of use of the building to a hotel. The proposal involves 
a first floor extension on the north-east side and external and internal 
alterations. The building was listed on 12 October 2021, after which a listed 
building application was submitted to run in parallel with the planning 
application. The listed building application reference is P21/V3388/LB. A 
location plan is below, and the application plans are attached at Appendix 1. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1.5 The planning application has been amended three times. The stages of the 
application and its amendments can be summarised as follows. 
 
Original Proposal 

 Change of use to a 26-bedroom hotel with 14 parking spaces 

 A first floor extension and internal alterations to Old Abbey House 

 A separate one-and-a-half storey café building is proposed on the lawn 
to the north-west of the main building 

 

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

First Amendment 

 The number of bedrooms is increased to 30 with the addition of four 
bedrooms in the roofspace of Old Abbey House 

 
Second Amendment 

 The separate café building is removed from the proposal 

 Car parking is amended to address the concerns of the County 
Highways Officer over manoeuvring space - 11 parking spaces are now 
proposed 

 A second bat survey is submitted 
 
Third Amendment 

 The first floor extension is reduced in size and the number of internal 
alterations substantially reduced to preserve more of the historic 
structure 

 The detail of proposed external and internal works is annotated on the 
drawings 

 The number of bedrooms is reduced to 27 

 Tree protection details are submitted 
 

1.6 The third set of amendments were subject to re-consultation on 15 February 
2022, and any responses received after the completion of the report will be 
reported to the committee meeting. 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
The full version of all comments received is on the planning application pages 
of the council’s website, www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

 
2.1 Abingdon Town 

Council 
Original – no objections 
First – no further comments 
Second – no further comments 
Third – any comments received to be reported to the 
meeting 
 

Local Residents 
and Local 
Groups 

Original – three submissions were received making the 
following points: 

 The impact of the proposal on the heritage 
interest of Old Abbey House has been 
underestimated 

 The proposal is likely to affect significant 
archaeological remains 

 The café building is likely to harm nearby trees 
First – no further comments have been received 
Second – no further comments have been received 
Third - any comments received to be reported to the 
meeting 
  

Conservation 
Officer 

Original – no objection to the principle of change of use, 
but more information on the heritage impact is required. 

Page 20

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

First – as above 
Second – no objection subject to pre-commencement 
conditions 
Third – no objection subject to details shown on the 
plans 
 

Historic England Original – no comments 
First – no comments 
Second – no comments 
Third - any comments received to be reported to the 
meeting 
 

County 
Archaeologist 
 

Original – no objection subject to conditions 
First – as above 
Second – as above 
Third – no objections as there will be no invasive ground 
works 
 

The Gardens 
Trust 

Original – no comments received 
First – no comments received 
Second – no objection in principle but request more 
information on impacts of the proposal 
Third - any comments received to be reported to the 
meeting 
 

County 
Highways 
Officer 

Original – no objection in principle but requests more 
information 
First – as above 
Second – no objection subject to condition to secure the 
amended parking layout 
Third – not re-consulted 
 

Drainage Officer Original – the proposed café will require a surface water 
drainage condition 
First – as above 
Second – the café has been removed, so no objections 
Third – not re-consulted 
 

Forestry Officer Original – holding objection to request more information 
First – as above 
Second – no objection subject to tree protection details 
being submitted 
Third - any comments received to be reported to the 
meeting 
 

Air Quality 
Officer 
 

Original – no objection subject to condition to secure an 
EV charging point 
First – as above 
Second – as above 
Third – not re-consulted 

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

Countryside 
Officer 

Original – a further bat survey is required 
First – as above 
Second – no objection subject to condition regarding the 
submitted bat survey report 
Third – not re-consulted 
 

Contaminated 
Land Officer 
 

Original - No comments 
Not re-consulted further 

Waste 
Management 
 

Original - No comments as it is a commercial site 
Not re-consulted further 

Thames Water Original - No objections 
Not re-consulted further 
 

 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 P04/V1815/DA - Approved (16/02/2005) 
Resurfacing of roads and pavements on land at Abbey Gateway between 
Guildhall and St.Nicholas Church, High Street and Abbey Close car park and 
front of Old Abbey House including new access ramp. 
 
P97/V1313/DA - Approved (16/02/1998) 
Erection of new cycle shelter. 
 
P90/V1756/CA - Approved (15/03/1991) 
Demolition of part of boundary wall fronting Abbey House. 
 
P91/V1704 - Approved (07/03/1991) 
Construction of new road and new boundary walls. Complementary hard and 
soft landscaping. Erection of bollards to close Abbey Archway to regular 
vehicular traffic. 
 
P89/V0081/DA - Approved (19/04/1989) 
Construction of new district council offices including alterations to Abbey 
House, Abingdon. 
 
 

3.2 Pre-application History 
There is no pre-application history 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

4.1 The development is neither of sufficient scale, nor on the type of site, that 
would require an EIA 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 

The main issues in the consideration of this application are: 

 The principle  

 Design and impact on heritage assets  

Page 22

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P04/V1815/DA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P97/V1313/DA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P90/V1756/CA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P91/V1704
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P89/V0081/DA


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 Trees  

 Archaeology and scheduled monuments  

 Residential amenity  

 Traffic, parking and highway safety  

 Air quality  

 Biodiversity  

 Drainage  

 Contaminated land  

 Water supply and foul water drainage  

 Waste management  

 
5.1 The Principle  

Policy CP31 of LPP1 (Reviewed) supports new development to underpin and 
expand the visitor economy, including new hotels within the built-up areas of 
the Market Towns, which includes Abingdon. The policy draws on the council’s 
Hotel Needs Assessment of 2014 which concluded that, for Abingdon, 
demands from Culham Science Centre, Milton Park and Harwell Oxford, 
together with growth in the town’s economy, could support new hotels in the 
town. This includes a predicted demand for small boutique hotels in the town 
centre. The proposal meets this identified demand. In consequence officers 
consider there is no objection in principle to the proposal, subject to the details 
being acceptable. These details will now be assessed. 
 

5.2 Design and Impact on Heritage Assets 
Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 requires a local planning authority to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Section 72(1) states that 
special attention should be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 
the character or appearance of a conservation area. 
 

5.3 Policy CP39 of LPP1 (Reviewed) requires new development to preserve and 
where possible enhance designated heritage assets and their setting in 
accordance with national guidance and legislation. This includes ensuring that 
vacant historic buildings are re-used as soon as possible to prevent 
deterioration. Policy DP37 of LPP2 requires that development within a 
conservation area must demonstrate that it will conserve or enhance its special 
interest, character, setting and appearance. Policy DP38 requires that 
development which alters or extends a listed building must preserve or 
enhance its special architectural or historic interest and significance. Policy 
DP39 requires an application to demonstrate it will not be detrimental to the site 
or setting of Scheduled Monuments or to nationally important archaeological 
remains. 
 

5.4 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) contains advice on decision-
making involving heritage assets in paragraphs 194 – 208. Paragraph 200 
states that any harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset should 
require clear and convincing justification. Paragraph 202 states that where a 
proposed development will lead to less than substantial harm to significance, 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

the harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal 
including securing its optimal viable use. 
 

5.5 Listed Building Issues 
Old Abbey House became a grade II listed building on12 October 2021. The 
listing was made for three reasons: 
 

 The architectural interest of the surviving elements of the early- and late- 
C18th phases of construction of the principal west front of the building, 
integrating earlier fabric of possible C16th origin, as well as the rich and 
varied range of high-quality decorative features throughout the building 
acquired from the C18th through to the early C20th. 

 The historic interest of an important and prominent building within the 
historic precinct of the Abbey which includes within its structure and its 
associated walls salvaged masonry from the demolished Abbey 

 The group interest associated with other listed buildings in the Abbey 
precinct. 

 
5.6 There has been a considerable amount of discussion between officers and the 

applicant regarding the impact of the proposal on the historic fabric of the 
building. Officers appreciate the need to find a use for the building to secure its 
future, particularly in light of the concern that exists regarding rainwater ingress 
into the building and the potential for damage to occur. 
 

5.7 The listing of 12 October 2021 brought the heritage issues concerning the 
building itself into sharper focus and led to the latest set of amended plans. 
These have reduced the size of the proposed extension to the first floor, and 
considerably reduced the amount of internal alteration on both floors to 
preserve far more of the historic fabric. The number of proposed bedrooms has 
been reduced from 30 to 27 to allow for these beneficial amendments. 
 

5.8 The amended plans have also provided considerable detail by way of 
annotation regarding the repairs, alterations, and finishes that are proposed, as 
the applicant wishes to avoid pre-commencement conditions to allow the 
project to proceed more quickly. The Conservation Officer has carefully 
assessed the latest plans and is content that they show sufficient detail to avoid 
the need for pre-commencement conditions. 
 

5.9 The amendments that have been made mean that the level of harm to the 
significance of Old Abbey House as a listed building is considered to be at the 
lower end of less than substantial. This needs to be weighed against any public 
benefits of the proposal. Crucially, the proposal will bring about an optimum 
viable use for the currently vacant building. Officers consider this public benefit 
is sufficient to outweigh the degree of less than substantial harm that will be 
caused. Other public benefits will be considered below. 
 

5.10 Therefore, there is no objection to the proposal on listed building grounds 
subject to the detail on the plans being executed. As in law a planning 
permission has to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans,  
 

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

officers consider the plans themselves provide sufficient control over the 
approved works to ensure they are carried out. 
 

5.11 Impact on the Conservation Area 
Old Abbey House lies within the Abingdon Town Centre Conservation Area. 
The original proposal included a separate one-and-a-half storey café building 
on the lawn to the north-west of the building, adjacent to Abbey Close. This 
element was removed due to concern about its impact on the open lawn, and 
on the character and appearance of this part of the conservation area. 
Consequently, the lawn to the north-west of Old Abbey House will be kept 
open. 
 

5.12 The amended plans show relatively limited external change to the building. The 
main external changes are: 
 

 A first floor rear extension in the north-east part of the building with a 
modified roof structure and two new windows facing north 

 Eight small rooflights added to the main roof to light the proposed 
bedrooms in the roof 

 
These changes are relatively modest and, subject to the use of appropriate 
materials and detailing, which the plans show, officers consider there will be no 
harm to the character or appearance of the conservation area from the 
proposed changes. 
 

5.13 The use of the building will change to a hotel. The types of activity associated 
with a hotel, including the comings and goings of visitors and staff, will 
contribute to this already vibrant part of the town, which includes the entrance 
to the Abbey Cinema, and the main vehicular and pedestrian route from the 
town centre to Abbey Gardens and Abbey Meadows. In this context, the activity 
associated with the proposal will not harm the character of this part of the 
conservation area. 
 

5.14 Trees 
Policy CP44 of LPP1 (Reviewed) aims to ensure that important trees are 
retained as part of any proposal. There are six trees within the site and a 
further five nearby that could be affected by the development. The trees are of 
different species and size, but all are of good quality, and all make an important 
contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area. An 
Arboricultural Report was submitted with the application. The Forestry Officer 
has assessed the scheme and considers that none of the trees are likely to 
suffer harm, and those that are potentially most affected can be adequately 
protected by standard protection measures adopted during construction. A 
detailed tree protection plan has been submitted for the Forestry Officer to 
consider. Officers are confident that the proposal will not cause harm to any of 
the trees on the site or in the vicinity of the site. 
 

5.15 Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
The locality has a high potential for important archaeological remains. The 
original plans indicated some potential for invasive ground works and the 

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

County Archaeologist recommended appropriate pre-commencement 
conditions. The amended plans have scaled back the proposed changes to the 
building and made clear that there will be no invasive ground works. As a 
result, the County Archaeologist has withdrawn his request for conditions. 
Therefore, the scheme has no potential impact on archaeological remains. 
 

5.16 There are Scheduled Monuments nearby, namely Abby Gate and the remains 
of the Abbey of Abingdon. The proposal will have no effect on these Scheduled 
Monuments, so there are no objections in this regard. 
 

5.17 Residential Amenity 
Policy DP23 of LPP2 seeks to ensure that the impact of any development 
proposal on the amenities of neighbours is acceptable. The locality of the site 
has a mixture of uses. There are two storey residences immediately to the 
south, at nos.7 and 9 Abbey Close. These dwellings face towards the southern 
end wall of Old Abbey House at an angle, and at a distance of 15 – 20m. There 
is a 3m high stone boundary wall in between which screens much of the 
building from these neighbours. There are three, narrow windows on the first 
floor, south wall of Old Abbey House, and the proposal is that these will serve a 
corridor, a bathroom, and a bedroom. In view of the distance, the size of the 
windows, and the weight attached to finding an optimum viable use for the 
listed building, officers consider the relationship will not cause harm to 
neighbours through loss of privacy. 
 

5.18 There are also dwellings above and to the rear of some of the shops on Stert 
Street, to the west of the site. These dwellings lie at least 40m from Old Abbey 
House, a distance that is well in excess of the minimum adopted standard for 
privacy, which is 21m. No harm from loss of privacy should occur to the 
occupants of these dwellings. 

 
5.19 The main physical changes to the building will be on the north-east side, 

furthest from these neighbours, so there will be no harm to neighbours from 
loss of light or dominance. Given the established character of the area, a busy 
part of the town with activity throughout the day, officers consider the impact of 
the hotel use on the amenities of nearby residents will also be acceptable. 
 

5.20 Overall, officers consider that the impact of the proposal on the amenities of 
neighbours is acceptable, and the proposal accords with policy DP23 of LPP2. 
 

5.21 Traffic, Parking and Highway Safety 
Policies CP35 and CP37 of LPP1 (Reviewed) and policy DP16 of LPP2 require 
development to cause no harm to highway safety. Paragraphs 110 – 113 of the 
NPPF provide national guidance on the traffic implications of development. The 
County Highways Officer has carefully assessed the proposal. The site is in a 
highly sustainable location, within walking distance of public transport options 
and local car parks. There are parking controls in place, in the form of yellow 
lines, for some distance around the site. In light of this, the County Highways 
Officer has no objections to the traffic implications of the proposal, subject to a 
safe parking layout for the car park in front of the building. 
 

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

5.22 The original parking plan was amended at his request to allow for safe 
manoeuvring of vehicles. The result is 11 parking spaces, including one for the 
less mobile. With this amended plan, the County Highways Officer has no 
objections to the proposal, which is considered to comply with relevant 
development plan policies. 

 
5.23 Air Quality 

Policy DP26 of LPP2 deals with development within, or close to, an Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA). The site lies close to, but outside, the Stert Street 
part of the Abingdon AQMA. The Air Quality Officer has examined the 
application. When compared to the lawful use of the building, it is not 
considered that the proposal will cause any material deterioration of air quality. 
The Air Quality Officer does not object, but has requested that one EV charging 
point be included in the scheme, as a measure to improve air quality, using the 
ratio of one charging point per 1,000sq.m floor area – the proposal is slightly 
over 1,000sq.m in floor area. The applicant has agreed to this request and the 
charging point can be secured via condition. On this basis, the proposal is 
considered to comply with policy DP26. 
 

5.24 Biodiversity 
Policy CP46 of LPP1 (Reviewed) covers biodiversity, including protected 
species and biodiversity gain. Biodiversity interest in Old Abbey House has 
focussed on its potential to host bats. Bat surveys of the inside and the outside 
of the building, including emergence surveys, have been undertaken. The 
conclusions are that there is no evidence of bat colonisation of the building, 
and that the loft spaces are not suitable for bat roosting. There is evidence of 
pigeon nesting. The Countryside Officer has carefully assessed the surveys 
and agrees with the conclusions and recommendations, including the 
installation of one bat box and one bird box to enhance biodiversity, and the 
control of external lighting to avoid harm to bats using the installed box. These 
measures can be secured by conditions, and on this basis the proposal does 
comply with policy CP46. 
 

5.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Drainage 
Policy CP42 of LPP1 (Reviewed) aims to minimise flood risk from new 
developments. The site lies within Flood Zone 1, which is the lowest risk of 
flooding. The Drainage Officer has been consulted and initially recommended a 
condition to control surface water from the proposed café. With the removal of 
the café from the scheme, the proposal concerns only the re-use of the existing 
building, for which there are considered to be no drainage issues. Therefore, 
there are no objections on drainage grounds. 
 

5.26 
 
 
 
 
5.27 
 
 

Contaminated Land 
Policy DP37 of LPP2 aims to mitigate risk from land contamination. The 
application has been assessed for the potential to affect contaminated land. No 
potential has been identified, so there are no objections.   
 
Water Supply and Foul Water Drainage 
Policies CP42 and CP43 of LPP1 (Reviewed) looks to ensure new 
developments have an acceptable impact on natural resources and drainage. 

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
 
 
5.28 

Thames Water has confirmed there are no objections on the ground of water 
supply or foul drainage. 
 
Waste Management 
Policy DP28 of LPP2 requires acceptable measures for waste management. 
The council’s Waste Management Officer has confirmed that, as the proposal 
is commercial in nature, it will be served by a private waste contractor. 
 

5.29 Community Infrastructure Levy 
The proposal does not qualify for CIL under the council’s CIL Charging 
Schedule. 
 

6.0 CONCLUSION AND PLANNING BALANCE 
Old Abbey House is a grade II listed building that lies within the Abingdon Town 
Centre Conservation Area. The proposal involves an extension to the building, 
and external and internal alterations. The proposals are considered to cause 
harm to the significance of the building, and the harm is considered to be at the 
lower end of less than substantial. No harm is considered to arise to the 
character or appearance of the conservation area, or to nearby scheduled 
monuments. All existing trees can be retained. 
 

6.1 There will be no harm to neighbours’ amenities, and no harm to highway safety. 
The site lies close to the Abingdon AQMA, but no material harm to air quality will 
occur. An EV charging point can be secured as a measure to improve air 
quality. There are no drainage implications, and a biodiversity enhancement can 
be secured. 

 
6.2 The proposed change of use is supported by evidence regarding the need for 

new hotel accommodation in Abingdon. The sole harm that has been identified 
is to the significance of the listed building. Great weight is attached to this harm, 
as required by national policy, but the harm is categorised as less than 
substantial. The proposal will provide an optimum viable use for the currently 
empty listed building. It will also provide support for the local visitor economy, 
including spending to support local businesses. Together, these factors are 
considered to amount to a significant public benefit that is sufficient to outweigh 
the less than substantial harm to the designated heritage asset. Consequently, 
the recommendation is for approval. 
 
 

 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) (Reviewed) 
 

 CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area 
 
CP31  -  Development to Support the Visitor Economy 
 
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 

Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
CP39  -  The Historic Environment 
 
CP44  -  Landscape 
 
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2) 
 
DP16  -  Access 
 
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity 
 
DP36  -  Heritage Assets 
 
DP37  -  Conservation Areas 
 
DP38  -  Listed Buildings 
 
DP39  -  Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
 
Vale of White Horse Design Guide (SPD 2015) 
 
Neighbourhood Plan 
A neighbourhood plan has commenced preparation but is ay an early stage and 
has little weight at this time. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework, 2021 
 
Equality Act, 2010 
The application has been assessed under Section 149 of the Equality Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of the 
proposal. 
 
Human Rights Act, 1998 

 The application has been assessed under the Human Rights Act, particularly 
Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8 and Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1. The objections of 
individuals have been weighed against the public interest and the 
recommendation made by officers is considered to be proportionate. 
 

Author: Martin Deans  
Email: martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk  
Telephone: 01235 422600 

Page 29

mailto:lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk


1950 75
0

26
00

2000

20
00

850
2800

15
50

1950 75
0

26
00

2000

20
00

850
2800

15
50

12
00

2200

1300

2200

14
20

21
30

1425

275

1350

11
00

34
00

2975

1000

14
50 2000

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

(Rooms 5 & 8)

Existing wall

16

D16/1
FD30

Walls

Ceilings
All first floor areas to have suspended ceilings fitted.
Existing ceilings/coving to be left untouched above.

Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows, prior to
fixing new suspended ceiling below.

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

Section Through Existing
Second Floor

First Floor

2no layers of 22mm flooring grade
chipboard with 6mm Isorubber sound
insulation layer sandwiched between,
laid on new floor joists positioned next
to existing roof timbers

100mm 45kg/m3 insulation between
joists supported by a polypropylene
netting

existing ceiling made good as
necessary, to details noted above,
prior to instalation of suspended ceiling

new suspended ceiling, height
governed by fixtures in rooms

support noggin if req'd

new partition

Gyproc coreboard

flexible or acoustic sealant

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
FIRST FLOOR (SHEET 1 OF 2)

AB7/P/13

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

New type 2 acoustic walls built in
front of existing doors, which are to
remain untouched behind

new fire door existing fireplace to remain intact
behind new type 2 stud wall

fireplace to be
retained

New type 2 acoustic wall
built in front of existing
door, which is to remain
untouched behind

15

D15/1

121314

17

New type 2 acoustic wall
built in front of existing
door, which is to remain
untouched behind

New type 2 acoustic wall
built in front of existing
door, which is to remain
untouched behind

fireplace to be
retained

fireplace to be
retained

Existing blocked up
doorway to be re-opened
and new door fitted.

Existing blocked up
doorway to be re-opened
and new door fitted.

New type 1 wall to be
positioned below existing
beam, Rockwool insulation
to be placed between
beam and ceiling for
sound and fire proofing

fireplace to be
retained

existing doors to be retained,
fixed in closed position

New suspended ceiling to room 12 to
be fixed between existing coving line
and dado rail but above window heads.

All existing doors to corridor and
staircase area to be either
re-used or fixed in closed
position with partition built across
on room side, except this door to
existing toilet area which is to be
removed and blocked up.

New suspended ceilings to en suites of rooms 13 & 14 to
be fixed below underside of existing beam.
Existing ceiling and coving to be left untouched above.
Suspended ceiling is to be sloped up to meet window head

New suspended ceiling
as noted for room 12

New suspended ceiling
as noted for room 12

New suspended ceiling to rooms 15, 16 & 17 to be fixed below existing
coving line but above window heads. Coving to be left untouched above

New acoustic wall built across
full length of room, existing
door, architraves skirting etc.
to remain untouched behind.

existing door
to be re-hung

fireplace to be
retained

new half hour fire resisting
glazed screen & door

landing balustrading to be
removed and reused at 2nd floor
level, new balustrading to match
formed here at 1st floor level

D15/2

D12/1

D12/2

D13/1

D13/2

D14/1

D14/2

See detail below for acoustic  measures to 2nd floors

Indicates areas to receive suspended ceiling

Appendix 1

P
age 30



12
00

2200

1300

2200

14
20

21
30

1425

275

1350

11
00

34
00

2975

1000

14
50 2000

1950 75
0

26
00

2000

20
00

850
2800

15
50

12
00

2200

1300

2200

14
20

21
30

1425

275

1350

11
00

34
00

2975

1000

14
50 2000

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

(Rooms 5 & 8)

Existing wall

Walls

Ceilings
Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows:

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

First Floor

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
GROUND FLOOR (SHEET 2 OF 2)

AB7/P/14

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

Existing fire
doors to be
retained

D18/1

21

22 23

20 19

18Existing wall to be
removed and floor in
this area to be
raised up to match
the higher level

Existing mantlepiece
to blocked up
fireplace to be raised
up to suit new floor
level

Existing lining and architraves
to be raised up to suit new
floor level, new door added to
form wardrobe space

fireplace to be
retained

fireplace to be
retained

Existing fixed shut
door to remain

fireplace to be
retained, see
picture 44

new svpnew svp

new svp

new svp new svp

new svp

D18/2

D18/3

D19/1

D19/2

D20/1

D20/2

Existing fire
door to be
retained

Existing fire
door to be
retained

D21/1
FD30

D21/2

D22/2

D22/1
D23/1

D23/2

Existing fire door, frame & architraves
to be reused in new opening

New external walls, built off existing walls
below, to be a render finish, to match existing,
on 100mm Fenlite block or similar, a 125mm
cavity filled with Earthwool cavity slab and an
inner leaf of 100mm lightweight blockwork

new windows and brick detailing to match existing

new windows and brick detailing
to match existing

P
age 31



1000

2000

95
0

13
80

1000

90
0

900 760

2575

230
1150910

450
910

760

76
0

1550

24
50

2300

450
9101550

24
50

1530

1070

11
75

23001350

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

(Rooms 5 & 8)

Existing fire
doors fixed in
closed position

New type 2 sound proofing partition
built across full width of room,
existing door,architraves, skirting
etc. to remain untouched behind.

D1/1

1
Staff Room

D1/2

existing fire door to be
re hung, keeping
panelled face towards
the entrance hall

Existing fire door fixed
in closed position

new glazed fire
door & screen

Reception

R1/1

R1/2

R1/3

R1/4

R1/5

R1/6

R1/7

All features to be retained in this area.
Restored and decorated where
necessary, panelling to be painted a
lighter colour (to be decided) using a
powder based removable paint

2

new type 3 partition
built off of wall return

FD30

D2/1
FD30 D2/2

new svp

new svp

New suspended ceiling to be fixed
below existing coving line.
Existing ceiling and coving to be left
untouched above

existing glazed fire door to be
removed and opening blocked
up (wall type 1). Dado rail to
match existing added to both
rooms 2 & 3

new type 1 partition
built off of wall return

3

D3/1
FD30

D3/2

this dimension is approximate,
dependant on the 1000mm wide
room access dimension above
in room 3

new svp

New type 2 sound proofing walls.
Existing door, architrave and
detailing over to remain
untouched behind

new suspended ceiling to main room area
(ceiling to window bay to be left at full height)
fixed beneath existing coving line. Existing
coving and detailing to ceiling to be left
untouched above

block wall and beam & block
ceiling over to be demolished

existing double doors
to remain, fixed in
closed position

Existing glazed
door & screen
to remain

new suspended ceiling
to main room area, fixed
beneath existing coving
line which is to be left
untouched above. Ceiling
to window bay to be left
at full height

existing door to be fixed in closed
position, new 100mm stud partition to
be built across room up to door head
height, fitted with Celotex or similar
insulation between uprights. Existing
window above to be left clear above.
All existing architraves to be left
untouched

all existing window shutters to be retained.

existing door to be upgraded
to half hour fire resisting with
Supalux boarding or similar
fitted to room 16 side

new svp

new svp

D4/1
FD30

D4/2

new suspended ceiling to be
fitted in this area fixed
between arch detailing over
fireplace and coving, ceiling
bay to remain as is. Existing
coving detailing to be left
untouched above.

New sound proofing
partition, type 2, built
across full length of room,
existing door, architraves,
skirting etc. to remain
untouched behind.

Existing wall

4

5

D5/1
FD30

D5/2

Walls

Ceilings
All ground floor areas to have suspended ceilings fitted, apart from bays as noted on plan.
Existing ceilings/coving to be left untouched above.

Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows, prior to
fixing new suspended ceiling below.

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

Section Through Existing First Floor

Ground Floor

New 22mm flooring grade chipboard
on 6mm Isorubber sound insulation
layer laid on existing floor boards

100mm 45kg/m3 insulation between
existing joists supported by a
polypropylene netting

existing ceiling made good as
necessary, to details noted above,
prior to instalation of suspended ceiling

new suspended ceiling, height
governed by fixtures in rooms

support noggin if req'd

new partition

Gyproc coreboard

flexible or acoustic sealant

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
GROUND FLOOR (SHEET 1 OF 2)

AB7/P/11

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

New type 2 sound
proofing wall.
Existing door and
architrave to
remain untouched
behind

See detail below for acoustic  measures to all existing 1st floors

Indicates areas to receive suspended ceiling

P
age 32



19
50

900

2950

13
00

900

13
00

76
0

11
00

1530

1070

11
75

23001350

450
9101550

24
50

1530

1070

11
75

23001350

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

67
8

Laundry

(Rooms 5 & 8)

D6/1

new svp

existing door to be fixed in closed
position and opening blocked up
internally using 100mm timber stud
fitted with Celotex or similar insulation
between uprights.

Existing wall

Walls

Ceilings
All ground floor areas to have suspended ceilings fitted, apart from bays as noted on plan.
Existing ceilings/coving to be left untouched above.

Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows, prior to
fixing new suspended ceiling below.

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

Section Through Existing First Floor

Ground Floor

New 22mm flooring grade chipboard
on 6mm Isorubber sound insulation
layer laid on existing floor boards

100mm 45kg/m3 insulation between
existing joists supported by a
polypropylene netting

existing ceiling made good as
necessary, to details noted above,
prior to instalation of suspended ceiling

new suspended ceiling, height
governed by fixtures in rooms

support noggin if req'd

new partition

Gyproc coreboard

flexible or acoustic sealant

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
GROUND FLOOR (SHEET 2 OF 2)

AB7/P/12

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

D6/2

Existing fire
door

D7/1

existing glazed
fire door to be
replaced with
new 6 panel
FD30 door to
match others

new svp

new
svp

D7/2

existing fireplaces
to be retained.existing fireplace to

be retained.

existing glazed fire
door to be removed
and opening infilled
using wall type 1
construction

D8/1

existing glazed fire
door to be replaced
with new 6 panel FD30
door to match others

New type 2 sound
proofing wall.

New type 2 sound
proofing wall.

existing window to be
retained behind new
type 1 sound proof
panel.

D8/2

Store

9existing wall panelling
to remain

glazed doors to
remain

D9/1
FD30

D10/1
FD30

arch to remain

fireplace to remain

glazed windows
to remain

10

remove
existing
door

remove
existing
door

remove existing door
and block opening
using type 1 wall
construction

D9/2

D9/3

D10/2 remove existing door
and block opening
using type 1 wall
construction

remove existing
window and block
opening using type 1
wall construction

new svp

All ground floor glazing on the East
elevation to be fitted with opaque film
internally to a height of 1800mm for
privacy from public gardens

11

D11/1
FD30

D11/2

D11/3

D11/4

D11/5

Store

new steps up

remove existing door
and block opening
using type 1 wall
construction

See detail below for acoustic  measures to all existing 1st floors

Indicates areas to receive suspended ceiling

P
age 33



Scale 1:100 @ A1

0 5m

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

AB7/P/04 C

AR    29/04/2021 1:100

East Elevation

North Elevation South Elevation

West Elevation

slate roof to match existing
slate roof to match existing

new painted
timber windows

slate roof to
match existing

stone wall to
match existing

Rev A - 8/7/21 - Rooflights added to West & East elevations

Proposed conservation rooflights

Proposed conservation rooflights

Rev B - 27/1/22 - Amendments made to North & East elevations

windows hatched as this indicate areas of
existing glazing to receive obscure film to a
minimum height of 1800mm externally.
This applies to the ground floor windows on
the East elevation only

Rev C - 11/2/22 - Obscure glazing indicated on East elevation

P
age 34



5185
260

1765
260

5300

63
20

26
0

13
65

10
0

49
95

5255

260

3130

260

3865

63
20

26
0

47
00

34
30

27
20

20
0

17
80

76
0

95
0

76
0

3665

935760 10
0

16
60

2435

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75
x 50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no.
skins of 12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and
plaster skim finish to each side. One set of studs to receive
min. 50mm unfaced mineral wool insulation (min.
density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed
to stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or
sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and
skim to each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed
between studs as indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

Walls

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
SECOND FLOOR

AB7/P/15

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A2

0 1 3m2

24 26

25 27

D27/1

D27/2

D26/1D24/1

D25/1

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30
New glazed fire screen & door

D26/2

D25/2

D24/2

new conservation rooflights new conservation rooflights

new conservation rooflights new conservation rooflights

balustrading
reused from
1st floor level

Note:
150mm Kingspan K7 roofing insulation to be positioned between existing rafters at all sloping ceiling
areas, underside of existing rafters to be battened out as necessary.
Ceiling to new flat roof area, formed between existing roofs, to receive min. 400mm fibreglass
insulation

P
age 35



Rev A - 27/7/21 - Proposed cafe removed. Parking
spaces amended.

1

2

3

4

5

6
7

8

9

10

11

existing covered
cycle store

Bin store

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AB7/P/06 B

AR    29/04/2021 1:100

Scale 1:100 @ A1

0 5m

All parking spaces min. 5000 x 2500mm.
Bays 8 & 11 min. 2700mm wide Rev B - 09/09/21 - Parking spaces amended

P
age 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V3388/LB 

 SITE Old Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JD 

 PARISH ABINGDON 
 PROPOSAL Part demolition of rear of building, 

replacement extension and other internal 
alterations to create a hotel (As amended 
by plans received 15 February 2022) 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Cheryl Briggs 
Helen Pighills 

 APPLICANT Ede Holdings Ltd 
 OFFICER Martin Deans 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 Listed Building Consent subject to the following conditions: 

 
Standard 

 1. Commencement three years - Listed Building Consent 
2. Approved plans 
 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application has been called to committee by ward councillor, Helen 

Pighills. The site of this application is Old Abbey House, a grade II listed 
building that lies in Abbey Close, Abingdon. The building lies within the 
Abingdon Town Centre Conservation Area, at the west end of Abbey Gardens. 
The application site contains no part of Abbey Gardens, but does include the 
car park in front of the building, together with the existing cycle/bin stores, the 
stone walls and the lawn to the north-west of the building. 
 

1.2 Old Abbey House was most recently used as offices and meeting rooms for 
Abingdon Town Council. It is currently vacant. In May 2021 a planning 
application was submitted for change of use of the building to a hotel 
(P21/V1498/FUL). The building was listed on 12 October 2021, after which this 
listed building application was submitted to run in parallel with the planning 
application. The proposal involves a first floor extension on the north-east side 
and external and internal alterations. The location plan is below, and the 
application plans are attached at Appendix 1. 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V3388/LB


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
 
 
 

1.3 The application has been amended once. The original and amended 
proposals can be summarised as follows 
 
Original Proposal 

 A first floor extension on the north-east part of the building with a 
modified roof and significant internal changes to allow 30 bedrooms to 
be provided, including four in the main roof 

 
Amendment 

 The size of the first floor extension is reduced and is to be built on 
existing ground floor walls that are to be retained 

 The amount of internal change in the north-east part of the building is 
substantially reduced to allow for retention of much more historic fabric 

 A significant amount of information on proposed works is included on 
the plans 

 The number of bedrooms is reduced to 27 
 

1.4 The amendments were subject to re-consultation on 15 February 2022, and 
any responses received after the completion of the report will be reported to 
the committee meeting. 
 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
The full version of all comments received is on the planning application pages 
of the council’s website, www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

 
2.1 Abingdon 

Town Council 
Original – concerned about the amount of change that is 
proposed to approximately one quarter of the building, 
and how this relates to the listed status of the building 
 

Page 38

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

Amended – any comments received will be reported to 
the meeting 
 

Local 
Residents and 
Groups 

Original – 3 submissions raising the following concerns 

 The extent of proposed change is excessive and 
the loss of fabric harmful to the listed building 

 Excavation is likely which has implications for 
archaeology 

 Removed historic fixtures and fittings should be 
offered for display or storage elsewhere 

 A public use for the building would be preferable 
 
Amended - any comments received will be reported to 
the meeting 
 

Conservation 
Officer 

Original – more information is needed and more 
justification for the removal of historic fabric rather than its 
retention 
 
Amended – no objection subject to the detail on the plans 
being executed. The level of harm to the significance of 
the listed building is at the lower end of less than 
substantial 

 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 P04/V1815/DA - Approved (16/02/2005) 
Resurfacing of roads and pavements on land at Abbey Gateway between 
Guildhall and St.Nicholas Church, High Street and Abbey Close car park and 
front of Old Abbey House including new access ramp. 
 
P97/V1313/DA - Approved (16/02/1998) 
Erection of new cycle shelter. 
 
P90/V1756/CA - Approved (15/03/1991) 
Demolition of part of boundary wall fronting Abbey House. 
 
P91/V1704 - Approved (07/03/1991) 
Construction of new road and new boundary walls. Complementary hard and 
soft landscaping. Erection of bollards to close Abbey Archway to regular 
vehicular traffic. 
 
P89/V0081/DA - Approved (19/04/1989) 
Construction of new district council offices including alterations to Abbey 
House, Abingdon. 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

4.1 The scale of the proposal is too small to qualify for an EIA. 
 
 

Page 39

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P04/V1815/DA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P97/V1313/DA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P90/V1756/CA
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P91/V1704
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P89/V0081/DA


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 Impact on the Listed Building 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 requires a local planning authority to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Policy CP39 of LPP1 
(Reviewed) requires new development to preserve and where possible 
enhance designated heritage assets and their setting in accordance with 
national guidance and legislation. This includes ensuring that vacant historic 
buildings are re-used as soon as possible to prevent deterioration. Policy DP38 
of LPP2 requires that development which alters or extends a listed building 
must preserve or enhance its special architectural or historic interest and 
significance. 
 

5.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) contains advice on decision-
making involving heritage assets in paragraphs 194 – 208. Paragraph 200 
states that any harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset should 
require clear and convincing justification. Paragraph 202 states that where a 
proposed development will lead to less than substantial harm to significance, 
the harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal 
including securing its optimal viable use. 
 

5.3 Old Abbey House became a grade II listed building on12 October 2021. The 
listing was made for three reasons: 
 

 The architectural interest of the surviving elements of the early- and late- 
C18th phases of construction of the principal west front of the building, 
integrating earlier fabric of possible C16th origin, as well as the rich and 
varied range of high-quality decorative features throughout the building 
acquired from the C18th through to the early C20th. 

 The historic interest of an important and prominent building within the 
historic precinct of the Abbey which includes within its structure and its 
associated walls salvaged masonry from the demolished Abbey 

 The group interest associated with other listed buildings in the Abbey 
precinct. 

 
5.4 As part of the parallel planning application, and during the assessment of this 

listed building application, there has been a considerable amount of discussion 
between officers and the applicant regarding the impact of the proposal on the 
historic fabric of the building. Officers appreciate the need to find a use for the 
building to secure its future, particularly in light of the concern that exists 
regarding rainwater ingress into the building and the potential for damage to 
occur. 
 

5.5 Under the original plans for this application, significant external and internal 
changes were proposed to the north-east part of the building to allow for a first 
floor extension and the creation of standardised modular rooms on both floors. 
Significant lengths of existing walls were to be demolished with significant 
uncertainty about the fate of important internal decorative features. These 
plans drew criticism from the Conservation Officer, the Town Council, and local 

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

residents and groups regarding the amount of change and consequential loss 
of historic fabric. Following further discussions with the Conservation Officer, 
amended plans were prepared and were submitted on 15 February. 
 

5.6 The amended proposal has scaled back substantially the degree of change to 
the north-east part of the building. The first floor extension has been reduced in 
size, so that it can sit on existing ground floor walls, which are to be retained. 
Existing room divisions and room layouts are to be largely retained. Much more 
historic fabric will be left in situ. 
 

5.7 The amended plans have also provided considerable detail by way of 
annotation regarding the repairs, alterations, and finishes that are proposed, as 
the applicant wishes to avoid pre-commencement conditions to allow the 
project to proceed more quickly. The Conservation Officer has carefully 
assessed the latest plans and is content that they show sufficient detail to avoid 
the need for pre-commencement conditions. 
 

5.8 The amendments that have been made mean that the level of harm to the 
significance of Old Abbey House as a listed building is considered to be at the 
lower end of less than substantial. This needs to be weighed against any public 
benefits of the proposal. Crucially, the proposal will bring about an optimum 
viable use for the currently vacant building. Officers consider this public benefit 
is sufficient to outweigh the degree of less than substantial harm that will be 
caused. Other public benefits are considered in the parallel planning 
application report. 
 

5.9 Therefore, there is no objection to the proposal on listed building grounds 
subject to the detail on the plans being executed. As in law a listed building 
consent has to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans, officers 
consider the plans themselves provide sufficient control over the approved 
works to ensure they are carried out. 
 

5.10 Other Issues 
Consultation responses have raised two other issues that are not relevant to 
the consideration of the listed building application. One is the need for any 
archaeological works. This is a matter to be considered purely under the 
parallel planning application. The amended plans have made clear there will be 
no invasive ground works, and the County Archaeologist has no objections to 
the proposal. One response has also questioned whether the building should 
be put to public use but, as members are aware, possible alternative uses are 
not material to the consideration of an application for listed building consent. 
 

6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 Old Abbey House is a grade II listed building. The proposal involves an 
extension to the building, and external and internal alterations to create a hotel. 
The proposals are considered to cause harm to the significance of the building, 
and the harm is considered to be at the lower end of less than substantial. Great 
weight is attached to this harm, as required by national policy. The proposal will 
provide an optimum viable use for the currently empty listed building. This is 
considered to amount to a significant public benefit that is sufficient to outweigh 

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

the less than substantial harm to the designated heritage asset. Consequently, 
the recommendation is for approval. 
 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 
  
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) (Reviewed) 

 
CP39  -  The Historic Environment 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2) 
 
DP38  -  Listed Buildings 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework, 2021 
 
Equality Act, 2010 
The application has been assessed under Section 149 of the Equality Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of the 
proposal. 
 
Human Rights Act, 1998 
The application has been assessed under the Human Rights Act, particularly 
Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8 and Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1. The objections of 
individuals have been weighed against the public interest and the 
recommendation made by officers is considered to be proportionate. 

 
Author: Martin Deans  
Email: martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk  
Telephone: 01235 422600 

 

Page 42

mailto:lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk


1950 75
0

26
00

2000

20
00

850
2800

15
50

1950 75
0

26
00

2000

20
00

850
2800

15
50

12
00

2200

1300

2200

14
20

21
30

1425

275

1350

11
00

34
00

2975

1000

14
50 2000

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

(Rooms 5 & 8)

Existing wall

16

D16/1
FD30

Walls

Ceilings
All first floor areas to have suspended ceilings fitted.
Existing ceilings/coving to be left untouched above.

Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows, prior to
fixing new suspended ceiling below.

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

Section Through Existing
Second Floor

First Floor

2no layers of 22mm flooring grade
chipboard with 6mm Isorubber sound
insulation layer sandwiched between,
laid on new floor joists positioned next
to existing roof timbers

100mm 45kg/m3 insulation between
joists supported by a polypropylene
netting

existing ceiling made good as
necessary, to details noted above,
prior to instalation of suspended ceiling

new suspended ceiling, height
governed by fixtures in rooms

support noggin if req'd

new partition

Gyproc coreboard

flexible or acoustic sealant

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
FIRST FLOOR (SHEET 1 OF 2)

AB7/P/13

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

New type 2 acoustic walls built in
front of existing doors, which are to
remain untouched behind

new fire door existing fireplace to remain intact
behind new type 2 stud wall

fireplace to be
retained

New type 2 acoustic wall
built in front of existing
door, which is to remain
untouched behind

15

D15/1

121314

17

New type 2 acoustic wall
built in front of existing
door, which is to remain
untouched behind

New type 2 acoustic wall
built in front of existing
door, which is to remain
untouched behind

fireplace to be
retained

fireplace to be
retained

Existing blocked up
doorway to be re-opened
and new door fitted.

Existing blocked up
doorway to be re-opened
and new door fitted.

New type 1 wall to be
positioned below existing
beam, Rockwool insulation
to be placed between
beam and ceiling for
sound and fire proofing

fireplace to be
retained

existing doors to be retained,
fixed in closed position

New suspended ceiling to room 12 to
be fixed between existing coving line
and dado rail but above window heads.

All existing doors to corridor and
staircase area to be either
re-used or fixed in closed
position with partition built across
on room side, except this door to
existing toilet area which is to be
removed and blocked up.

New suspended ceilings to en suites of rooms 13 & 14 to
be fixed below underside of existing beam.
Existing ceiling and coving to be left untouched above.
Suspended ceiling is to be sloped up to meet window head

New suspended ceiling
as noted for room 12

New suspended ceiling
as noted for room 12

New suspended ceiling to rooms 15, 16 & 17 to be fixed below existing
coving line but above window heads. Coving to be left untouched above

New acoustic wall built across
full length of room, existing
door, architraves skirting etc.
to remain untouched behind.

existing door
to be re-hung

fireplace to be
retained

new half hour fire resisting
glazed screen & door

landing balustrading to be
removed and reused at 2nd floor
level, new balustrading to match
formed here at 1st floor level

D15/2

D12/1

D12/2

D13/1

D13/2

D14/1

D14/2

See detail below for acoustic  measures to 2nd floors

Indicates areas to receive suspended ceiling

Appendix 1

P
age 43



12
00

2200

1300

2200

14
20

21
30

1425

275

1350

11
00

34
00

2975

1000

14
50 2000

1950 75
0

26
00

2000

20
00

850
2800

15
50

12
00

2200

1300

2200

14
20

21
30

1425

275

1350

11
00

34
00

2975

1000

14
50 2000

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

(Rooms 5 & 8)

Existing wall

Walls

Ceilings
Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows:

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

First Floor

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
GROUND FLOOR (SHEET 2 OF 2)

AB7/P/14

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

Existing fire
doors to be
retained

D18/1

21

22 23

20 19

18Existing wall to be
removed and floor in
this area to be
raised up to match
the higher level

Existing mantlepiece
to blocked up
fireplace to be raised
up to suit new floor
level

Existing lining and architraves
to be raised up to suit new
floor level, new door added to
form wardrobe space

fireplace to be
retained

fireplace to be
retained

Existing fixed shut
door to remain

fireplace to be
retained, see
picture 44

new svpnew svp

new svp

new svp new svp

new svp

D18/2

D18/3

D19/1

D19/2

D20/1

D20/2

Existing fire
door to be
retained

Existing fire
door to be
retained

D21/1
FD30

D21/2

D22/2

D22/1
D23/1

D23/2

Existing fire door, frame & architraves
to be reused in new opening

New external walls, built off existing walls
below, to be a render finish, to match existing,
on 100mm Fenlite block or similar, a 125mm
cavity filled with Earthwool cavity slab and an
inner leaf of 100mm lightweight blockwork

new windows and brick detailing to match existing

new windows and brick detailing
to match existing

P
age 44



1000

2000

95
0

13
80

1000

90
0

900 760

2575

230
1150910

450
910

760

76
0

1550

24
50

2300

450
9101550

24
50

1530

1070

11
75

23001350

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

(Rooms 5 & 8)

Existing fire
doors fixed in
closed position

New type 2 sound proofing partition
built across full width of room,
existing door,architraves, skirting
etc. to remain untouched behind.

D1/1

1
Staff Room

D1/2

existing fire door to be
re hung, keeping
panelled face towards
the entrance hall

Existing fire door fixed
in closed position

new glazed fire
door & screen

Reception

R1/1

R1/2

R1/3

R1/4

R1/5

R1/6

R1/7

All features to be retained in this area.
Restored and decorated where
necessary, panelling to be painted a
lighter colour (to be decided) using a
powder based removable paint

2

new type 3 partition
built off of wall return

FD30

D2/1
FD30 D2/2

new svp

new svp

New suspended ceiling to be fixed
below existing coving line.
Existing ceiling and coving to be left
untouched above

existing glazed fire door to be
removed and opening blocked
up (wall type 1). Dado rail to
match existing added to both
rooms 2 & 3

new type 1 partition
built off of wall return

3

D3/1
FD30

D3/2

this dimension is approximate,
dependant on the 1000mm wide
room access dimension above
in room 3

new svp

New type 2 sound proofing walls.
Existing door, architrave and
detailing over to remain
untouched behind

new suspended ceiling to main room area
(ceiling to window bay to be left at full height)
fixed beneath existing coving line. Existing
coving and detailing to ceiling to be left
untouched above

block wall and beam & block
ceiling over to be demolished

existing double doors
to remain, fixed in
closed position

Existing glazed
door & screen
to remain

new suspended ceiling
to main room area, fixed
beneath existing coving
line which is to be left
untouched above. Ceiling
to window bay to be left
at full height

existing door to be fixed in closed
position, new 100mm stud partition to
be built across room up to door head
height, fitted with Celotex or similar
insulation between uprights. Existing
window above to be left clear above.
All existing architraves to be left
untouched

all existing window shutters to be retained.

existing door to be upgraded
to half hour fire resisting with
Supalux boarding or similar
fitted to room 16 side

new svp

new svp

D4/1
FD30

D4/2

new suspended ceiling to be
fitted in this area fixed
between arch detailing over
fireplace and coving, ceiling
bay to remain as is. Existing
coving detailing to be left
untouched above.

New sound proofing
partition, type 2, built
across full length of room,
existing door, architraves,
skirting etc. to remain
untouched behind.

Existing wall

4

5

D5/1
FD30

D5/2

Walls

Ceilings
All ground floor areas to have suspended ceilings fitted, apart from bays as noted on plan.
Existing ceilings/coving to be left untouched above.

Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows, prior to
fixing new suspended ceiling below.

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

Section Through Existing First Floor

Ground Floor

New 22mm flooring grade chipboard
on 6mm Isorubber sound insulation
layer laid on existing floor boards

100mm 45kg/m3 insulation between
existing joists supported by a
polypropylene netting

existing ceiling made good as
necessary, to details noted above,
prior to instalation of suspended ceiling

new suspended ceiling, height
governed by fixtures in rooms

support noggin if req'd

new partition

Gyproc coreboard

flexible or acoustic sealant

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
GROUND FLOOR (SHEET 1 OF 2)

AB7/P/11

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

New type 2 sound
proofing wall.
Existing door and
architrave to
remain untouched
behind

See detail below for acoustic  measures to all existing 1st floors

Indicates areas to receive suspended ceiling

P
age 45



19
50

900

2950

13
00

900

13
00

76
0

11
00

1530

1070

11
75

23001350

450
9101550

24
50

1530

1070

11
75

23001350

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75 x
50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no. skins of
12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and plaster skim
finish to each side. One set of studs to receive min. 50mm unfaced
mineral wool insulation (min. density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed to
stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 2

new independant wall panel of 2 layers of plasterboard with
staggered joints on 75 x 50mm timber framing separated from
existing wall by at least 10mm. Min. 35mm thickness of mineral
wool insulation to be placed between framing

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and skim to
each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed between studs as
indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

67
8

Laundry

(Rooms 5 & 8)

D6/1

new svp

existing door to be fixed in closed
position and opening blocked up
internally using 100mm timber stud
fitted with Celotex or similar insulation
between uprights.

Existing wall

Walls

Ceilings
All ground floor areas to have suspended ceilings fitted, apart from bays as noted on plan.
Existing ceilings/coving to be left untouched above.

Indicates areas of existing ceilings badly damaged by water ingress which are to be repaired as follows, prior to
fixing new suspended ceiling below.

1. Hack off damaged plaster and underlying lathwork back to sound plaster, ensuring that laths are cut back to a
structural support beam

2. Fix laths Oak Riven Laths allowing 25 no metre lengths per square metre.

3. Make sure surfaces are sound. Wet surfaces thoroughly. Dub out any large voids using Tradlym Mortar BM2.
Allow dubbing out to cure.

4. First coat - Wet surface thoroughly. Apply 1st backing coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre to a maximum
depth of 10mm. If application is to laths sufficient mortar must be pushed through the lath to form “hooks” to
take the weight of the remaining mortar. Allow to cure (up to 10 days) misting occasionally if plaster starts to
dry out. Scratch to receive 2nd coat.

5. Second coat - Wet 1st coat. Apply 2nd coat of Tradlym Backing with Hair/Fibre and straighten up. Allow to cure
again misting if necessary. Scratch with devil float.

6. Finish coat - Wet 2nd coat. Apply Tradlym Fine Finish plaster to a maximum depth of 4mm.

Section Through Existing First Floor

Ground Floor

New 22mm flooring grade chipboard
on 6mm Isorubber sound insulation
layer laid on existing floor boards

100mm 45kg/m3 insulation between
existing joists supported by a
polypropylene netting

existing ceiling made good as
necessary, to details noted above,
prior to instalation of suspended ceiling

new suspended ceiling, height
governed by fixtures in rooms

support noggin if req'd

new partition

Gyproc coreboard

flexible or acoustic sealant

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
GROUND FLOOR (SHEET 2 OF 2)

AB7/P/12

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A1

0 1 3m2

D6/2

Existing fire
door

D7/1

existing glazed
fire door to be
replaced with
new 6 panel
FD30 door to
match others

new svp

new
svp

D7/2

existing fireplaces
to be retained.existing fireplace to

be retained.

existing glazed fire
door to be removed
and opening infilled
using wall type 1
construction

D8/1

existing glazed fire
door to be replaced
with new 6 panel FD30
door to match others

New type 2 sound
proofing wall.

New type 2 sound
proofing wall.

existing window to be
retained behind new
type 1 sound proof
panel.

D8/2

Store

9existing wall panelling
to remain

glazed doors to
remain

D9/1
FD30

D10/1
FD30

arch to remain

fireplace to remain

glazed windows
to remain

10

remove
existing
door

remove
existing
door

remove existing door
and block opening
using type 1 wall
construction

D9/2

D9/3

D10/2 remove existing door
and block opening
using type 1 wall
construction

remove existing
window and block
opening using type 1
wall construction

new svp

All ground floor glazing on the East
elevation to be fitted with opaque film
internally to a height of 1800mm for
privacy from public gardens

11

D11/1
FD30

D11/2

D11/3

D11/4

D11/5

Store

new steps up

remove existing door
and block opening
using type 1 wall
construction

See detail below for acoustic  measures to all existing 1st floors

Indicates areas to receive suspended ceiling

P
age 46



Scale 1:100 @ A1

0 5m

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

AB7/P/04 C

AR    29/04/2021 1:100

East Elevation

North Elevation South Elevation

West Elevation

slate roof to match existing
slate roof to match existing

new painted
timber windows

slate roof to
match existing

stone wall to
match existing

Rev A - 8/7/21 - Rooflights added to West & East elevations

Proposed conservation rooflights

Proposed conservation rooflights

Rev B - 27/1/22 - Amendments made to North & East elevations

windows hatched as this indicate areas of
existing glazing to receive obscure film to a
minimum height of 1800mm externally.
This applies to the ground floor windows on
the East elevation only

Rev C - 11/2/22 - Obscure glazing indicated on East elevation

P
age 47



5185
260

1765
260

5300

63
20

26
0

13
65

10
0

49
95

5255

260

3130

260

3865

63
20

26
0

47
00

34
30

27
20

20
0

17
80

76
0

95
0

76
0

3665

935760 10
0

16
60

2435

New sound resisting wall constructed of 2no. independent 75
x 50mm stud partitions (min. overall width of 200mm), 2no.
skins of 12mm plasterboard, laid with staggered joints, and
plaster skim finish to each side. One set of studs to receive
min. 50mm unfaced mineral wool insulation (min.
density10kg/m3)
Note: Ensure each layer of plasterboard is independantly fixed
to stud frame.
Seal the perimeter of the independent panels with tape or
sealant.
Any sockets on these walls to be surface mounted

Wall type 1

Wall type 3

new 75 x 50mm stud partition with 12mm plasterboard and
skim to each side. Mineral wool insulation to be packed
between studs as indicated

m
in

. 2
00

m
m

Walls

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

WORKING PLAN
SECOND FLOOR

AB7/P/15

AR    11/02/22 1:50

Scale 1:50 @ A2

0 1 3m2

24 26

25 27

D27/1

D27/2

D26/1D24/1

D25/1

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30
New glazed fire screen & door

D26/2

D25/2

D24/2

new conservation rooflights new conservation rooflights

new conservation rooflights new conservation rooflights

balustrading
reused from
1st floor level

Note:
150mm Kingspan K7 roofing insulation to be positioned between existing rafters at all sloping ceiling
areas, underside of existing rafters to be battened out as necessary.
Ceiling to new flat roof area, formed between existing roofs, to receive min. 400mm fibreglass
insulation

P
age 48



Rev A - 27/7/21 - Proposed cafe removed. Parking
spaces amended.

1

2

3

4

5

6
7

8

9

10

11

existing covered
cycle store

Bin store

EDEN HOUSE, TWO RIVERS BUSINESS PARK, STATION LANE,
WITNEY, OX28 4BL TEL. 01993 890760    FAX. 01993 779746

Oxon Planning Partnership

PROJECT:

TITLE:

DRAWN:

DRAWING No:

SCALE:

REVISION:

CONVERSION OF OLD ABBEY
HOUSE, ABINGDON

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AB7/P/06 B

AR    29/04/2021 1:100

Scale 1:100 @ A1

0 5m

All parking spaces min. 5000 x 2500mm.
Bays 8 & 11 min. 2700mm wide Rev B - 09/09/21 - Parking spaces amended

P
age 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
N



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V3148/HH 

 SITE 2 Bertie Road, Cumnor, Oxford, OX2 
9PS 

 PARISH CUMNOR 
 PROPOSAL Demolition of attached garage and 

erection of two storey extension on the 
same footprint. Erection of attached 
double garage at front of dwelling. Note, 
this forms an amendment to application 
P18/V0136/HH which is currently under 
construction, and a subsequent 
application P21/V1867/HH which was 
withdrawn. 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Alison Jenner 
Judy Roberts 

 APPLICANT Adam Dixon-Chapman 
 OFFICER Lewis Dixey 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 Planning Permission 
 1. TL1 - Time limit - Full Application (Full) 

2. Approved plans * 
 
Pre-Commencement 
3. LS4 – Method Statement for Hedge Protection (Full) 
 
Compliance Conditions: 
4. LS5[I] - Retain Existing Hedgerow (Full) 
5. MC3 - Materials in Accordance with Applicaton(Full) 
6. RE11 – Restrict Garage Accommodation (Full) 
 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 The application comes to committee having been called in by local ward 

member, Judy Roberts. Cumnor Parish Council also object to the proposal 
 

1.2 The property is a detached dwelling located within an established residential 
area, accessed from Cumnor Hill. There are neighbouring dwellings to the 
north (no.2A Bertie Road) and south (no.48 Oxford Road) with highway 
access obtained at the front of the site. The site is bounded along the western 
side, adjacent to the highway, by a substantial evergreen hedge approximately 
3m in height, separated midway by a 3m wide access The existing walls of the 
house are traditional red brick with horizontal cladding and there is a tiled roof. 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V3148/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
1.3 Planning permission has previously been granted, on 13 March 2018, for a 

single storey rear extension and first floor side extension over the existing 
attached, flat roof double garage. This application is seeking permission for an 
identical single storey rear extension and two storey side extension on the 
footprint of the existing garages, but with the addition of an attached double 
garage at front of the dwelling 
 

1.4 The principle of extending above the existing garages on the same footprint 
and adding a single storey rear extension has already been accepted by the 
granting of the previous planning permission P18/V0136/HH. Therefore, the 
main part of the assessment, and reason for the committee call-in, is focused 
on the proposed single-storey front extension to add a double garage. 
 

1.5 The garage would project 6.5m from the front elevation with a shallow dual 
pitched, hipped roof with an eave height of 2.5m and a ridge of 3.7m. The total 
number of bedrooms would be five and three parking spaces have been 
demonstrated within the frontage in addition to the proposed double garage 
space. 
 

1.6 The existing 3m-high hedge will be retained on the road frontage. There is a 
2m high close boarded fence on the north boundary, and a lower deciduous 
hedgerow on the roadside boundary of the neighbour to the north, no.2A. 
 

1.7 A site location plan is provided below and the plans are attached at Appendix 
1. 
 

 
 

Page 51



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
 
 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Cumnor Parish Council Objection 

Council is concerned that the 
replacement double garage is in front 
of the building line in Bertie Road 
 

Vale - Highways Liaison Officer 
(Oxfordshire County Council) 

No objection 
Subject to retention of garage space 
condition 
 

Forestry Officer (South and Vale No objection 
Subject to hedge retention condition 
 

Neighbour 1 Submission of No objection 
A preference expressed for brick or 
render and no windows on first floor 
south elevation other than rooflights 
 

 
 

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 P21/V1867/HH - Withdrawn (31/08/2021) 
Demolition of attached garages and erection of two storey extension on the 
same footprint. Erection of detached double garage. Note, this forms an 
amendment to application P18/V0136/HH which is currently under construction 
(Relocation of proposed garage as shown on drawings 21.051 2b and 21.051 
7b received 10 August 2021). 
 
P18/V0136/HH - Approved (13/03/2018) 
Single storey rear extension. First floor side extension over existing garages. 
Infill of canopy to front elevation. Planning Application History 
 

 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

4.1 Householder development does not fall within the defined scope for potential 
EIA development 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main relevant planning considerations are the following:  

 

 Principle of development  

 Character and appearance  

 Residential amenity  

 Access and parking  
 

Page 52

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V1867/HH
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V0136/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
5.2 Principle of development  

The principle of extending the property up to two storeys on the footprint of the 
original garages, and of a single-storey extension at the rear, has already been 
established through the granting of planning permission under reference 
P18/V0136/HH. The proposed single storey rear and two storey side 
extensions are identical in size and shape to the extensions approved in 2018. 
The main change seen in this revised scheme would be to add a new double 
garage projecting off the northern side of the front elevation. A rear garden of 
approximately 230 sq.m would remain with the extensions added. This 
comfortably exceeds the adopted standard of 100 sq.m. Therefore, the works 
are not considered to amount to overdevelopment of the site. On this basis, the 
proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle, subject to 
the details. These will be considered below 

 
5.3 Character and appearance  

Policy CP37 of LPP1 (Reviewed) and policy DBC1 of the Cumnor 
Neighbourhood Plan (CNP) seeks to ensure high quality design and respect for 
the key positive characteristics of the locality of a development. Policy DBC1 
lists the retention of existing mature hedgerows as being important. The Design 
Guide SPD also seeks to ensure that residential extensions are well designed 
and appropriate for their location. In terms of the impact on the character of the 
area, there are no other garages located in the front gardens of the 
neighbouring properties on Bertie Road. As members are aware, each 
application must be assessed on its own merits and a judgment must be made 
as to whether any harm identified would warrant refusal of the application. 

 
5.4 The Parish Council raises concern over the proposed garage encroaching 

beyond the building line of Bertie Road. Officers have carefully assessed the 
impact of the development on the street scene. A substantial existing mature 
hedge is present on the western front boundary measuring approximately 3 
metres in height, and there is a 2m high fence along the northern side. These 
will act to screen the visual impact of the proposed garage. Views from the 
south and west will be effectively blocked by the hedge. Views from the north, 
which are obtained from a relatively narrow angle once the observer is in front 
of no.2A,will be restricted to approximately 500mm of the side wall, and then 
the shallow hipped roof above. Officers consider the building will therefore be 
mostly screened from view, to the extent that its impact on the character and 
appearance of the area will not be so great as to warrant refusal of the 
application.  

 
5.5 Key to this assessment is the presence of the hedge. The council’s forestry 

officer has been consulted and has confirmed that, due to the existing ground 
conditions being driveway, the garage can be constructed without causing 
harm to the hedge. In order to ensure that the front hedge is retained and 
properly maintained in perpetuity a condition has been imposed. A condition 
has also been proposed requiring a method statement with details of the 
foundation construction to ensure that the roots of the front hedge are not 
damaged. 

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
5.6 It should be noted that if future applications are submitted for other properties, 

these will be decided on their own merits and are dependent on what type of 
landscaping or other screening exists and the height and the design of the 
proposed building. 
 

5.7 The design of all of the proposed extensions will match the design and 
proportions of the main house. The neighbour’s concerns are noted, but 
officers consider that, given the character and appearance of the area, the use 
of horizontal cladding to the first floor and render to the ground floor is 
considered acceptable and in-keeping with the locality. Overall, officers are of 
the opinion that the proposal would not harm the visual amenity of the area and 
complies with policy CP37 of LPP1 (Reviewed) and policy DCB1 of CNP. 
 

5.8 Residential amenity  
Policy DP23 of LPP2 seeks to protect neighbours’ amenities from harm due to 
development. One letter from a neighbour has been submitted and whilst not 
objecting to the new garage, they have expressed a preference for materials 
and that no upper floor windows should be permitted on the southern elevation. 
 

5.9 The distance between the proposed first floor extension and neighbouring 
dwellings to the south is over 40m. This is enough to prevent any impact in 
terms of overshadowing or dominance. Permitted development rights would 
allow upper floor windows to be added to the southern elevation in the future, 
but the rights restrict such windows to be obscure glazed with opening 
elements at least 1.7m above the internal floor level to prevent loss of privacy.  
The neighbour to the north, no.2A, is set at an angle to No.2 and in view of this, 
and the relatively low height of both the proposed rear extension and the 
proposed garage, it is not considered that the extensions will have an adverse 
impact on this dwelling. 

 
5.10 Taking into account the orientation of the property and its relationship with the 

surrounding dwellings, officers do not consider that the proposals would harm 
the amenities of any of the neighbouring properties and would comply with 
policy DP23 of LPP2. 
 

5.11 Access and parking  
Policies CP35 and CP37 of LPP1 (Reviewed), policy DP16 of LPP2, and policy 
TI1 of CNP aim to protect highway safety and ensure sustainable transport 
options. The proposal would convert the existing garages and increase the 
number of bedrooms to five. The county highways officer has been consulted 
and raises no objection subject to the retention of the new garage 
accommodation being retained, which has been conditioned. 

 
5.12 Three parking spaces have been shown on the block plans together with the 

double garage. The highways officer has noted that the garage could only be 
used efficiently by one vehicle. However, the site could still comfortably 
accommodate enough parking spaces to standard for the size of the enlarged 
dwelling in this relatively sustainable location. The existing access would  
remain and officers do not consider the works to have an adverse impact on  

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee - 09 March 2022 

 
highway safety. Therefore, the proposal accords with relevant development 
plan policies. 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 In the absence of any negative weight that can be attached to the proposal in 
the form of identified harm from any material consideration, officers consider the 
outcome of the planning balance is that the proposal complies with the 
provisions of the development plan, in particular policy CP37, DP16 and DP23 
of the adopted Vale of White Horse Plan 2031, and policies DCB1 and TI1 of 
the Cumnor Neighbourhood Plan. The proposal is also considered to comply 
with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework and the council’s 
adopted Design Guide SPD 2015 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 

 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (Reviewed) policies; 

 CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP44  -  Landscape 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies; 
DP16  -  Access 
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity 
 
Cumnor Neighbourhood Plan 2021 (CNP) policies: 
 
DCB1 - General Design Principles in the Parish 
TI1 – Sustainable Transport 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 – 2019  
 
Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD 2015 
 
Equalities Act 2010  
The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this 
proposal 
 
Human Rights Act, 1998  
The application has been assessed against Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8, and 
against Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1 of the Human Rights Act, 1998. The harm 
to individuals has been balanced against the public interest and the officer 
recommendation is considered to be proportionate. 
 
Author: Lewis Dixey  
Email: lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk  
Telephone: 01235 422600 

Page 55

mailto:lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk


 

 1 

 

Page 56



Appendix 1

P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P21/V3298/FUL 

 SITE 65 St Johns Road, Abingdon OX14 2HA 
 PARISH ABINGDON 
 PROPOSAL Change of use of retail (E use class) into 

restaurant (E use class) and takeaway 
(Sui Generis) including installation of 
extraction flue system to side. 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Helen Pighills 
Cheryl Briggs 

 APPLICANT Mr S Chinnam 
 OFFICER Abbie Barnes 
 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 Planning Permission subject to the following conditions: 

 
Standard 

 1. Commencement of development within three years 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 

 
Compliance 

3. Materials in accordance with application 
4. Premise hours restriction 
5. Extraction flue in accordance with details submitted 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to committee at the request of Local Ward 

Councillor Helen Pighills. 
 

1.2 The site is located on St John’s Road at the corner of Oxford Road. It is 
located within a predominantly suburban residential area and forms part of a 
small neighbourhood shopping centre. The application premises is a two-
storey building with the ground floor currently used as retail, and the first floor 
as residential use. Adjacent to it, to the north, is a premises used for laundry 
services. Beyond that is a neighbourhood shop, then a restaurant/take-away, 
and then a Tesco Express. In front of the shop is a vehicular lay-by that also 
serves in part as a bus stop. Located to the rear of the unit is a car park which 
serves the Tesco Express, with the exit road running along the side of the 
application site. Adjacent to the exit road from the car park is a service road 
leading to privately owned garages, and then no.63 St John’s Road, a 
dwelling. Opposite the site is a dwelling, no.5 Oxford Road. A Road Traffic 
Order (yellow lines) applies along both sides of St John’s Road near to the 
junction with Oxford Road. 
 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

1.3 A site location map is provided below: 
 

 
 

1.4 The application is seeking planning permission for the change of use of the 
existing retail unit (E use class) into a mixed use of restaurant (E use class) 
and take-away (Sui Generis). The proposal would provide an internal seating 
area for customers whilst also providing a new food take-away service. It is 
proposed that the new business will be selling pizza. 
 
The application plans are attached at Appendix 1. 
 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 
 
 

Below is a summary of the responses received. A full copy of all the 
comments made can be viewed online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  
 

Abingdon 
Town Council 

The Town Council has commented as follows: 
“The Town Council does not object to the application in 
principle but has concerns over the nature of the take-away. 
The Town Council is concerned that if the nature of the 
take-away changes, there may be an increase in odour and 
thus nuisance to neighbouring properties. The Town 
Council therefore requests that the planning team adds an 
informative if permission is granted which would require 
further approval should the nature of the take-away change 
in future” 
 
 
 

Page 63

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

Councillor 
Helen Pighills 
 

Supports a neighbour’s objections regarding the impact of 
customers’ cars likely to be parked dangerously whilst 
visiting the premises due to local on-street parking. Also 
has the following concerns: 
 

 The location of commercial waste to be collected 
needs to be clarified 

 

Neighbour 
comments 

12 households object on the following grounds: 

 Likely rogue parking due to existing local on-street 
parking congestion will create obstruction and 
danger 

 The danger could involve local schoolchildren who 
use St John’s Road 

 Associated parking congestion will make exiting St 
John’s Road onto Oxford Road, and entering from it, 
dangerous 

 Lack of commercial waste storage 

 Anti-social behaviour and littering, which is already 
experienced, will be increased to the detriment of 
neighbours 

 Noise and light pollution 

 Proposed hours of use 
 

Highway 
Liaison Officer 
(Oxfordshire 
County 
Council) 

Due to the lawful use of the site for retail, and now for 
potential other Class E uses, some of which have 
potentially high traffic generation, and the existence of 
double yellow lines at the Oxford Road/St John’s Road 
junction, which are now enforced by the local highway 
authority, there are no objections. 
 

Drainage 
Engineer 
 

No objections 

Food safety No objections  
 

Environmental 
Protection  

No objections subject to noise and odour mitigation 
schemes being maintained. 
 

Waste 
Management 

No objection as the site will be serviced by a commercial 
waste contractor. 

 
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

3.1 Planning applications 
P87/V1323- Demolish existing toilets and storeroom. Erection of new store 
incorporating external access to flat over. Approved 9 December 1987 
 
 

Page 64



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

P83/V1757/COU- Change of Use from children’s clothes shop to sale of hot 
food. Withdrawn 31 January 1983 
 

3.2 Pre-application History 
None 
 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

4.1 This proposal does not fall within one of the identified classes of development 
in Schedule 2 of the EIA regulations and is not in a sensitive area. A screening 
opinion under the Regulations is therefore not required. 
 

5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 Principle 

National and local planning policies seek to support local shops and other 
services that support local communities. In September 2020, the Government 
introduced a significant change to the Town & Country Planning Use Classes 
Order by amalgamating a number of previous use classes into one, known as 
Class E. Class E includes shops, financial and professional services, 
restaurants and cafes, indoor sport, medical services, nurseries, offices, and 
light industrial and research uses. The change means that a premises can 
change from one use to another use on the list without the need for planning 
permission. 
 

5.2 The reason for this change was to give much greater flexibility for the use of 
traditional retail premises, to allow them to continue to be used rather than risk 
falling empty and vacant for long periods, in the face of the recent rapid 
expansion of internet retailing. Being a shop, the application site falls into Class 
E. This major change to the Use Classes Order has significantly broadened the 
types of uses that a shop premises can now be used for. It overrides Local 
Plan policies that have previously often sought to restrict the type of uses that a 
shop can be changed into. It marks a significant shift in the planning approach 
expected by Government towards traditional shop premises. 

 
5.3 The planning application is for a mixed use of sit-down eating (or restaurant) 

which is within Class E, and a take-away, which is a sui generis use that is 
outside of Class E. Against the background of a much more flexible approach 
to the use of traditional shop premises, officers consider the principle of the 
change is acceptable, subject to details. The details will now be considered. 
 

5.4 Design and Appearance 
Core Policy 37 of LPP1 (Reviewed) requires new development to be of a high-
quality design that is visually attractive and the scale, height, massing and 
details are appropriate for the site and surrounding area. The main change 
involved with the proposal is a new external flue on the south side of the 
premises. The flue will be relatively narrow, only 250mm in diameter. It will exit 
the side wall of the building approximately 2.5m above ground level, and 
terminate 1m above the parapet wall on the roof. It will be treated in a similar 
colour to the red brick side wall to help minimise its visual effect. Other 
changes include painting of the shop front frame. 

Page 65



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

 
5.5 In view of the small size of the proposed flue, and that its intended colouring 

will be sympathetic to that of the side wall, officers consider the visual impact of 
the proposal is acceptable.  

 
5.6 Residential Amenity 

Policy DP23 of LPP2 seeks to ensure developments do not result in adverse 
impacts on the amenities of neighbours. The proposed extraction flue brings 
potential concerns regarding noise and odour. There is a separate flat on the 
first floor and neighbouring houses close by. The application is supported by a 
noise assessment, including mitigating measures, and a detailed specification 
for the flue to tackle odour. These have been the subject of careful assessment 
by the Environmental Protection Officer. 
 

5.7 The proposal would incorporate acoustic insulation between the extraction flue 
system and the ceiling separating the unit with the above level. Anti-vibration 
mounts inside and outside will also aid in suppressing any noise transmission 
from the system to either the upper floor or to nearby separate dwellings. The 
flue will incorporate fine-carbon filters to remove odour. A cleaning schedule for 
the filters to ensure they maintain effectiveness has been submitted. Having 
reviewed the documentation, the Environmental Protection Officer has no 
objections subject to the mitigation regimes being maintained. This can be 
controlled by condition. 
 

5.8 In relation to the opening hours of the premises, it is proposed to open between 
the hours of 8.00am and 11.00pm, 7 days a week. These opening hours are 
not considered to be unusual for local retail facilities, and the ending of 
customer visits at 11.00pm is considered to be a reasonable compromise 
between the viability of the business and the amenities of local residents. 

 
5.9 Objectors have complained about an increase in anti-social behaviour arising 

from the proposal. Officers are not aware of any evidence that automatically 
links the introduction of a take-away with a material increase in anti-social 
behaviour. A link may be assumed, but officers consider that this is insufficient, 
when considered in the balancing exercise with all other material 
considerations, to justify the refusal of the planning application. 
 

5.10 The Town Council has requested that a control be imposed to require a further 
planning permission if the type of take-away changes on the grounds that 
odour filtration may need to change. The fine-carbon filtration proposed for the 
flue is comprehensive in nature, and should be adequate for different types of 
take-away food. Therefore, officers consider the Town Council’s request is 
unreasonable. 
 

5.11 Overall officers are satisfied the development would not result in harm to the 
amenities of neighbouring properties. It would therefore comply with Policy 
DP23. 
 
 
 

Page 66



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

5.12 Access and Parking 
Core Policies 35 and 37 LPP1 and policy DP16 of LPP2 deal with the traffic 
implications of applications. Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states that 
development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there 
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 
impacts on the road network would be severe. 
 

5.13 Most of the objections to the application are based on highway safety. The 
Highways Liaison Officer has carefully examined the proposal. He is a highly 
experienced officer who knows the area very well. He is very aware of the 
parking pressure in the locality, and the proximity of the school. He is also 
mindful of the tests in paragraph 111 of the NPPF mentioned above. 
 

5.14 The Highways Officer has taken the following factors into account: 

 The site has been used as a shop for many years, and therefore has a 
traffic impact on the locality that is associated with it. This impact, which 
can be reasonably expected to vary depending on the type of shop and 
how popular it is, has to be taken into account. 

 The recent introduction of Class E means that the potential uses of the 
premises, and the traffic implications of the uses, has expanded 
considerably. The potential traffic impact of these alternative uses also 
has to be taken into account 

 The Highways Liaison Officer is constrained to rely upon enforcement of 
the Road Traffic Order (yellow lines) at the junction, as experience at 
appeal indicates that appeal inspectors also rely upon their enforcement. 

 
In light of these factors, the Highways Liaison Officer does not object to the 
proposal. 
 

5.15 Waste 
Policy DP28 of LPP2 deals with waste collection. Commercial properties have 
a choice of waste service provider which is not controlled by the council so the 
storage and collection arrangements can be very different for each 
establishment depending on the method they choose. 
 

5.16 In this case the applicant has demonstrated that there is a small area located to 
the rear that would be shared with the flat above for waste storage. The area is 
relatively small, but as commercial units do not have to use 1100 litre bins, 
smaller bins could be accommodated in the area proposed. 

 
5.17 The council’s Waste Team have raised no objections to the proposals. 

 
5.18 Community Infrastructure Levy 

The proposal is not subject to CIL liability. 
 

5.19 Pre-commencement conditions 
There are no pre-commencement conditions.  
 
 

Page 67



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 09 March 2022 

6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 Officers have considered the proposal in light of the much greater flexibility of 
potential uses for traditional shops brought in by the recent introduction of Use 
Class E. The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of its impact on 
visual amenity. Subject to condition, the impact of the proposed flue is 
acceptable. In general, no likely harm to neighbours’ amenities can be identified. 
The factors relating to associated traffic have been carefully considered and it is 
concluded the proposal cannot be refused on highways grounds. As such, the 
proposal is considered to comply with relevant policies of the development plan 
and with the NPPF. 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 
  

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) (Reviewed) Policies: 
 
CP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (LPP2) Policies: 
 
DP16 - Access 
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity 
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling 
 

 Neighbourhood plan 
A neigbourhood plan for Abingdon is at an early stage in the process and has 
little weight at this time. 
 

 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
Vale of White Horse Design Guide 2015 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 
 

 Equality Act, 2010 
The application has been assessed under Section 149 of the Equality Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of the 
proposal. 
 
Human Rights Act, 1998 
The application has been assessed under the Human Rights Act, particularly 
Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8 and Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1. The objections of 
individuals have been weighed against the public interest and the 
recommendation made by officers is considered to be proportionate. 

  
Author: Abbie Barnes 
Phone: 01235 422600 
Email: abbie.barnes@southandvale.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 68

mailto:sarah.green@southandvale.gov.uk


PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/100 @A3

BOUNDARY
LINE

ST. JOHN`S
ROAD

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/100 @A3

10m5m4m3m2m0m 1m DATE:  NOV. 2021
PROJECT:

PLANNING

PROPOSED

- ELEVATIONS

SCALE:  1/100 @A3 REF. NO :  073/P/21.04

TOWN PLANNING CONSULTANTS &
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN

86-90 PAUL STREET, LONDON EC2A 4NE

info@deltatechltd.com
www.deltatechltd.com

65 ST. JOHN`S ROAD
ABINGDON
OX14 2HA

BOUNDARY
LINE

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/100 @A3

Projecting Sign

Metal shopfront
painted black

1
0

00

Flue to be painted or
wrapped to match

existing background

1
0

00

Flue to be painted or
wrapped to match

existing background

ANTI VIBRATION
MOUNTS

Appendix 1

Page 69



EXISTING WALL

LEGEND

DEMOLISHED WALL

PROPOSED PARTITION WALL

PROPOSED CAVITY WALL

KEY TO FIGURE

A. COOKING AREA
B. FAN MOTOR
C. FINE FILTER LATER
D. SILENCER

HIGH TABLE

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/100 @A3

10m5m4m3m2m0m 1m DATE:  NOV. 2021
PROJECT:

PLANNING

PROPOSED

-  GROUND FLOOR PLAN
-  FIRST FLOOR PLAN
-  SITE PLAN
SCALE:  1/100 @A3

               1/500
REF. NO :  073/P/21.03

TOWN PLANNING CONSULTANTS &
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN

86-90 PAUL STREET, LONDON EC2A 4NE

info@deltatechltd.com
www.deltatechltd.com

65 ST. JOHN`S ROAD
ABINGDON
OX14 2HA

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR AREA : 87.65 m²

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1/50025m20m15m10m0m 5m

ST. JOHN`S ROAD

BOUNDARY
LINE

65

7

9

11

63

S
T

. JO
H

N
`S

 R
O

A
D

BOUNDARY
LINE

BOUNDARY
LINE

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/100 @A3

HIGH TABLE

2000

2
0

00

FLUE UP
TO ROOF

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR AREA : 87.65 m²

Page 70


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes , 07/12/2021 Planning Committee

	7 P21/V1498/FUL - Old Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon
	Appendix 1
	First Floor Plan Sheet 1
	Sheets and Views
	1st 1 of 2


	First Floor Plan Sheet 2
	Sheets and Views
	1st 2 of 2


	Ground Floor Plan Sheet 1
	Sheets and Views
	gf 1 of 2


	Ground Floor Plan Sheet 2
	Sheets and Views
	gf 2 of 2


	Proposed Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	elevs


	Second Floor Plan
	Sheets and Views
	2nd


	Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1




	8 P21/V3388/LB - Old Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon
	Appendix 1
	First Floor Plan Sheet 1
	Sheets and Views
	1st 1 of 2


	First Floor Plan Sheet 2
	Sheets and Views
	1st 2 of 2


	Ground Floor Plan Sheet 1
	Sheets and Views
	gf 1 of 2


	Ground Floor Plan Sheet 2
	Sheets and Views
	gf 2 of 2


	Proposed Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	elevs


	Second Floor Plan
	Sheets and Views
	2nd


	Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1




	9 P21/V3148/HH - 2 Bertie Road, Cumnor
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 Block Plan
	Appendix 1 Elevation Existing
	Appendix 1 Elevations Proposed
	Appendix 1 Floor Plans Existing
	Appendix 1 Floor Plans Proposed


	10 P21/V3298/FUL - 65 St Johns Road, Abingdon
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 Elevations Proposed
	Appendix 1 Site Plan and Floor Plan



